PN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Agenda

www.oxford.gov.uk

West Area Planning Committee

Date: Tuesday 25 November 2014

Time: 6.30 pm

Place: The Old Library, Town Hall

For any further information please contact:

Jennifer Thompson, Committee and Member Services Officer
Telephone: 01865 252275

Email: democraticservices@oxford.gov.uk

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the
Contact Officer know how you wish to do this before the start of the meeting.



West Area Planning Committee

Membership

Chair Councillor Oscar Van Nooijen Hinksey Park;

Vice-Chair Councillor Michael Gotch Wolvercote;
Councillor Elise Benjamin Iffley Fields;
Councillor Bev Clack St. Clement's;
Councillor Colin Cook Jericho and Osney;
Councillor Andrew Gant Summertown;
Councillor Alex Hollingsworth Carfax;
Councillor Bob Price Hinksey Park;
Councillor John Tanner Littlemore;

The quorum for this meeting is five members. Substitutes are permitted

HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and Council member requirement.
Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and
at the Westgate Library

A copy of the agenda may be:-

- Viewed on our website — mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk

- Downloaded from our website

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk
- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription.




AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

WESTGATE CENTRE, OX1 1NX: 14/02402/RES

Report of the Head of City Development.

Site location

Westgate Centre and adjacent land encompassing the existing Westgate
Centre and land bounded by Thames Street, Castle Mill Stream, Abbey
Place, Norfolk Street, Castle Street, Bonn Square, St Ebbes Street, Turn
Again Lane and Old Greyfriars Street OX1 1NX.

Proposal

Demolition of southern part of Westgate Centre, 1-14 Abbey Place and multi-
storey car park, retention of library, refurbishment of remainder of the existing
Westgate Centre and construction of a retail-led mixed use development
together providing A1 (retail), A2 (finance and professional services) and/or
A3 (restaurants and cafes) and/or A4 (public house, etc.) and/or A5 (hot food
takeaways) uses, C3 (residential) use and D2 (assembly and leisure) uses,
public toilets, associated car and cycle parking, shopmobility facility, servicing
and access arrangements together with alterations to the public highway.

(Reserved matters of outline planning permission 13/02557/OUT seeking
permission for details of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale. The
report and appendices for 13/02557/OUT considered at West Area Planning
Committee on 11" March 2014 are attached as a supplement to this agenda
for reference.)

Recommendation
To grant reserved matters planning permission subject to conditions:

Time limits.

Reserved matters approved.

Approved drawings.

Southern entrance door to block 1.

Details of public realm works, including covered streets and squares.
Landscaping details.

Ecology and new habitats.

Details of tower feature to block 4.

Bus routes via Queen Street.

10. External lighting scheme.

11. Mitigation of any adverse wind impacts.

12. Temporary wind screens.

13. Protection of privacy to new County Hall building.

14. Details of display cabinets to Castle Street elevation of Building 4.
15. Architectural and construction details, (to include windows, doors, roof,
plant enclosures, escalators, stairs etc).

©CONOORWLN =

Pages



DECLARING INTERESTS
General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses);
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies;
and securities. These declarations must be recorded in each councillor's Register of Interests which
is publicly available on the Council’s website.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must
declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of
the interest.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter
is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and that “you must not place yourself
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”. What this means is that the
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should
continue to be paid to the perception of the public.

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were
civil partners.



CODE OF PRACTICE FOR DEALING WITH PLANNING APPLICATIONS AT AREA
PLANNING COMMITTEES AND PLANNING REVIEW COMMITTEE

Planning controls the development and use of land in the public interest. Applications must be
determined in accordance with the Council’s adopted policies, unless material planning
considerations indicate otherwise. The Committee must be conducted in an orderly, fair and
impartial manner.

The following minimum standards of practice will be followed.

1. All Members will have pre-read the officers’ report. Members are also encouraged to view any
supporting material and to visit the site if they feel that would be helpful

2. At the meeting the Chair will draw attention to this code of practice. The Chair will also explain
who is entitled to vote.

3. The sequence for each application discussed at Committee shall be as follows:-

(a) the Planning Officer will introduce it with a short presentation;

(b) any objectors may speak for up to 5 minutes in total;

(c) any supporters may speak for up to 5 minutes in total;

(d) speaking times may be extended by the Chair, provided that equal time is given to both sides.
Any non-voting City Councillors and/or Parish and County Councillors who may wish to speak for
or against the application will have to do so as part of the two 5-minute slots mentioned above;

(e) voting members of the Committee may raise questions (which shall be directed via the Chair to
the lead officer presenting the application, who may pass them to other relevant Officers and/or
other speakers); and

(f) voting members will debate and determine the application.

At public meetings Councillors should be careful to be neutral and to listen to all points of view.
They should take care to express themselves with respect to all present including officers. They
should never say anything that could be taken to mean they have already made up their mind
before an application is determined.

4. Public requests to speak

Members of the public wishing to speak must notify the Chair or the Democratic Services Officer
before the beginning of the meeting, giving their name, the application/agenda item they wish to
speak on and whether they are objecting to or supporting the application. Notifications can be
made via e-mail or telephone, to the Democratic Services Officer (whose details are on the front of
the Committee agenda) or given in person before the meeting starts.

5. Written statements from the public

Members of the public and councillors can send the Democratic Services Officer written statements
to circulate to committee members, and the planning officer prior to the meeting. Statements are
accepted and circulated up to 24 hours before the start of the meeting.

Material received from the public at the meeting will not be accepted or circulated, as Councillors
are unable to view proper consideration to the new information and officers may not be able to
check for accuracy or provide considered advice on any material consideration arising.

6. Exhibiting model and displays at the meeting

Applicants or members of the public can exhibit models or displays at the meeting as long as they
notify the Democratic Services Officer of their intention at least 24 hours before the start of the
meeting so that members can be notified.




7. Recording meetings

Members of the public and press can record the proceedings of any public meeting of the Council.
If you do wish to record the meeting, please notify the Committee clerk prior to the meeting so that
they can inform the Chair and direct you to the best plan to record. You are not allowed to disturb
the meeting and the Chair will stop the meeting if they feel a recording is disruptive.

The Council asks those recording the meeting:

* Not to edit the recording in a way that could lead to misinterpretation of the proceedings. This
includes not editing an image or views expressed in a way that may ridicule, or show a lack of
respect towards those being recorded.

* To avoid recording members of the public present unless they are addressing the meeting.

For more information on recording at meetings please refer to the Council’s Protocol for Recording
at Public Meetings

8. Meeting Etiquette

All representations should be heard in silence and without interruption. The Chair will not permit
disruptive behaviour. Members of the public are reminded that if the meeting is not allowed to
proceed in an orderly manner then the Chair will withdraw the opportunity to address the
Committee. The Committee is a meeting held in public, not a public meeting.

9. Members should not:

(a) rely on considerations which are not material planning considerations in law;

(b) question the personal integrity or professionalism of officers in public;

(c) proceed to a vote if minded to determine an application against officer's recommendation until
the reasons for that decision have been formulated; and

(d) seek to re-design, or negotiate amendments to, an application. The Committee must
determine applications as they stand and may impose appropriate conditions.



Agenda Iltem 3

West Area Planning Committee 125" November 2014

Application Number: 14/02402/RES
Decision Due by: 15th January 2015

Proposal: Demolition of southern part of Westgate Centre, 1-14
Abbey Place and multi-storey car park, retention of
library, refurbishment of remainder of the existing
Westgate Centre and construction of a retail-led mixed
use development together providing A1 (retail), A2
(finance and professional services) and/or A3
(restaurants and cafes) and/or A4 (public house, etc.)
and/or A5 (hot food takeaways) uses, C3 (residential)
use and D2 (assembly and leisure) uses, public toilets,
associated car and cycle parking, shopmobility facility,
servicing and access arrangements together with
alterations to the public highway (Reserved matters of
outline planning permission 13/02557/OUT seeking
permission for details of appearance, landscaping,
layout and scale).

Site Address: Westgate Centre and adjacent land encompassing the
existing Westgate Centre and land bounded by Thames
St, Castle Mill Stream, Abbey Place, Norfolk St, Castle
St, Bonn Square, St Ebbes St, Turn Again Lane and
Old Greyfriars, Appendix 1.

Ward: Carfax Ward

Agent: Turley Applicant: Westgate Oxford
Alliance

Recommendation:

Grant reserved matters planning permission subject to conditions.

Reasons for Approval

1 The Council considers that the proposals accord generally with the
policies of the Development Plan as summarised below. Nevertheless as the
application site falls in part outside the primary shopping area as defined by
policy WE23 of the West End Area Action Plan (AAP), the outline application to



which the current case represents a reserved matters application was considered
as a "departure" from the Development Plan; advertised accordingly; and
referred to the Secretary of State as required. The Secretary of State did not
require the outline application to be "called in" for his own determination
however, and in reaching a recommendation to support the planning application
in principle the Council has taken into consideration all material matters,
including matters raised in response to consultation and publicity. Any material
harm that the development would otherwise give rise to can be offset by the
conditions imposed on outline and reserved matters applications and
accompanying legal agreements.

2 The planning application is supported by substantial information to
demonstrate that it would possess a built form, scale and appearance
appropriate to its sensitive city centre location. The fixed Development Principles,
Public Realm Development Principles and Parameter Plans approved as part of
the outline planning permission provide controls to ensure that the reserved
matters application is of the highest quality, recognising and responding to
important short, medium and long distance views whilst enhancing the public
realm which would serve it. The proposals provide a range of appropriate uses at
a sustainable location in a retail led development which seeks to consolidate and
enhance the city's role as a sub regional centre whilst also providing an element
of residential accommodation consistent with the West End AAP for which the
development may be seen as a catalyst. Accordingly the development is in
general accordance with the aims and adopted policies of the Oxford Core
Strategy 2026, Oxford Local Plan 2001 to 2016, West End AAP 2007 to 2016
and the Oxford Sites and Housing Plan 2013.

3 Officers have taken into account the comments made by statutory bodies,
interested parties and private individuals. All are fully acknowledged. Officers
have concluded however that for the reasons set out in this report that the
concerns that have been raised can be adequately addressed by the planning
conditions imposed to outline and reserved matters permissions, and by the
accompanying legal agreements.

4 The City Council has given considerable weight and importance to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing designated heritage assets and their
settings, including the listed buildings and conservation areas. It considers that
any harm that would result from the proposed development is justified by the
public benefits that would result and that the proposal is considered to comply
with the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act and relevant
adopted policies contained within the adopted Oxford Local Plan, the adopted
Oxford Core Strategy, the adopted Sites and Housing Plan. National Planning
Policy Framework and national Planning Practice Guidance.



Conditions

Time limits

Reserved matters approved

Approved drawings

Southern entrance door to block 1

Details of public realm works, including covered streets and squares
Landscaping details

Ecology and new habitats

Details of tower feature to block 4

Bus routes via Queen Street

10 External lighting scheme.

11 Mitigation of any adverse wind impacts

12 Temporary wind screens

13 Protection of privacy to new County Hall building.

14 Details of display cabinets to Castle Street elevation of Building 4.
15 Architectural and construction details, (to include windows, doors, roof,
plant enclosures, escalators, stairs etc.)

OCO~NOOOADWN--

NB: This current planning application represents the reserved matters of outline
planning permission 13/02557/OUT on which some 58 planning conditions were
imposed and was accompanied by a legal agreement and Community
Infrastructure (CIL) requirement. The imposed planning conditions related to a
wide variety of issues and included conditions fixing a series of Parameter Plans,
Development Principles and Public Realm Development Principles which formed
part of the permission and a framework defining the overall form, footprint and
heights of buildings to come forward at this reserved matters stage. At the time of
writing this report a dialogue with the applicant has begun on the details required
to be submitted in compliance with these outline conditions. These and all other
conditions remain in force and need only to be supplemented by the additional
conditions above relating specifically to the reserved matters application.

Agreement to details in compliance with conditions is a delegated function to
officers in the Council’s Constitution. Moreover, it is not a requirement that all
such conditions need be agreed before this reserved matters application is
determined. Rather some conditions are required to be agreed at defined stages
of implementation of a reserved matters permission whilst others relate to
matters that are continuing requirements of the outline permission. All details
required by condition for approval must be in place, however, before the building
works can be completed and the building occupied.

For ease of reference the officers’ report on the outline planning application to
West Area Planning Committee of 11" March 2014 is reproduced in full on this
agenda as a supporting document, together with appendices to that report and a
short Addendum also circulated to committee. Reference will be made to those
documents within this report. Display material and models of the proposed



development will be available for inspection at committee.
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), Planning and Highways Obligations.

Accompanying the outline planning permission was an obligation to contribute
approximately £4.5m under CIL arrangements, the precise figure currently being
determined upon detailed calculation of the gross internal floorspace. The
officers’ report on the outline application referred to measures that could
potentially be funded from this source. The outline permission was also
accompanied by requirements under the Planning and Highways Acts relating to
a variety of matters. These were itemised in the officers’ report. At committee one
other planning obligation was referred to and secured, relating to the need for
pedestrian routing arrangements from temporary car parks to the city centre
during construction of the development.

Principal Planning Policies:

Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016

CP1 - Development Proposals

CP5 - Mixed-Use Developments

CP8 - Design Development to Relate to its Context
CP9 - Creating Successful New Places

CP10 - Siting Development to Meet Functional Needs
CP13 - Accessibility

CP14 - Public Art

CP17 - Recycled Materials

CP18 - Natural Resource Impact Analysis

CP19 - Nuisance

CP20 - Lighting

CP21 - Noise

CP22 - Contaminated Land

CP23 - Air Quality Management Areas

TR1 - Transport Assessment

TR2 - Travel Plans

TR3 - Car Parking Standards

TR4 - Pedestrian & Cycle Facilities

TR7 - Bus Services & Bus Priority

TR11 - City Centre Car Parking

TR14 - Servicing Arrangements

NEG6 - Oxford's Watercourses

NE11 - Land Drainage & River Engineering Works
NE12 - Groundwater Flow

NE13 - Water Quality

NE14 - Water and Sewerage Infrastructure

NE15 - Loss of Trees and Hedgerows

NE16 - Protected Trees




NE20 - Wildlife Corridors

NE23 - Habitat Creation in New Developments
HE1 - Nationally Important Monuments
HEZ2 - Archaeology

HE3 - Listed Buildings and Their Setting
HEBG - Buildings of Local Interest

HE7 - Conservation Areas

HE9 - High Building Areas

HE10 - View Cones of Oxford

EC1 - Sustainable Employment

EC8 - Employment Training

SR7 - Public Open Space

SR9 - Footpaths & Bridleways

SR11 - Recreational Cycling

RC3 - Primary Shopping Frontage

RC4 - District Shopping Frontage

RC5 - Secondary Shopping Frontage
RC6 - Street Specific Controls

RC10 - Environmental Improvements - City Centre
RC12 - Food & Drinks Outlets

RC13 - Shop Fronts

RC14 - Advertisements

RC15 - Shutters & Canopies

Core Strategy

CS1 - Hierarchy of centres

CS2 - Previously developed and greenfield land
CS5 - West End

CS9 - Energy and natural resources

CS10 - Waste and recycling

CS11 - Flooding

CS12 - Biodiversity

CS13 - Supporting access to new development
CS14 - Supporting city-wide movement

CS17 - Infrastructure and developer contributions
CS18 - Urban design, townscape character & historic environment
CS19 - Community safety

CS20 - Cultural and community development
CS24 - Affordable housing

CS31 - Retail

West End Area Action Plan

WE1 - Public realm

WE2 - New links

WES3 - Redesign of streets/junctions in West End
WE4 - Public Parking




WES5 - Public spaces

WE10 - Historic Environment
WE11 - Design Code

WE12 - Design & construction
WE13 - Resource efficiency
WE14 - Flooding

WE15 - Housing mix

WE16 - Affordable housing
WE20 - Mixed uses

WE23 - Retail

WE24 - Cultural activity

WE30 - Streamlined contributions
WE31 - Compulsory purchase powers

Sites and Housing Plan

MP1 - Model Policy

HP2 - Accessible and Adaptable Homes
HP9 - Design, Character and Context
HP11 - Low Carbon Homes

HP13 - Outdoor Space

HP14 - Privacy and Daylight

HP15 - Residential cycle parking

HP16 - Residential car parking

Other Planning Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Planning Practice Guidance.

Oxpens Masterplan Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).
Affordable Housing & Planning Obligations SPD.

Natural Resource Impact Analysis SPD.

Balance of Dwellings SPD.

Parking Standards, Transport Assessments & Travel Plans SPD.
Statement of Community Involvement SPD.

Accessible Homes Technical Advice Note (TAN).

Draft Station Area Masterplan

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule.

Summary of Public Consultation
Consultation Undertaken by Applicant.

In addition to extensive consultation at the outline stage, following the West Area
Planning Committee’s resolution to grant outline planning permission in March of
this year, the applicant has undertaken a further comprehensive range of
activities in consulting stakeholders and the wider public on the emerging
reserved matters planning application. The list of consultation activities is



summarised in Appendix 2 to this report and included in particular the
distribution of flyers to some 1500 householders and businesses on two separate
occasions followed by two subsequent exhibitions within Westgate Centre. A
website was also created and continues to be live and updated.

At the first exhibition in April, some 1014 people attended with 168 either
completing a questionnaire at the exhibition or on line. Whilst a range of issues
was raised a clear majority of those who commented supported the proposals.
Some 64% felt the development would sit well within the city centre (17% did
not); 73% felt the landscaping would enhance the city (5% not); and 71% felt the
development overall would benefit the city overall (8% not). On more specific
points, 48% favoured a tower feature at the junction of New Road and Bonn
Square (28% not) and 64% felt the chosen materials would reflect the local area
(12% not). When asked about what they would like to see in the development, a
wide range of items were raised, but with the largest groupings wishing to see a
greater diversity and mix of retail units than currently exists.

At the second “drop in” exhibition in July 625 people attended with 57
respondents to the shorter questionnaire at the exhibition or on line. On this
occasion 56% felt the development would sit well within the city centre (31% not),
with 60% indicating it would be a welcome improvement to the city centre (23%
not).

Consultation Undertaken by Local Planning Authority

Statutory Organisations.

e Natural England. No objection.

e County Council, Overall View. Support in principle; welcome in principle
improvements e.g. to Castle Street and Norfolk Street; conditions need to be
imposed relating to lantern to building 4, details of public realm, lighting, street
furniture, signage, cycle parking and wayfinding.

e County Council, Transport. General. No objection subject to conditions; key
issues are details of public realm and cycle parking, Travel Plan, operation of
buses through Queen Street (if required), bus shelters and real time
information; wayfinding to be located within highway; level of car parking
acceptable; disappointed that materials for highway of lower quality than
covered streets and spaces; submitted plans indicate 508 cycle parking
spaces in public realm, 118 for flats at building 1A and in excess of 100 at
cycle hub; further spaces to be found either inside or outside application site
through further discussion; need for street furniture not to impede pedestrian
movement; details of bus shelters to be agreed; road markings and signage
to be kept to a minimum and coordinated with other facilities; crossings at
castle Street / New Road and south west of building 1 to be zebras. Bonn
Square. Improvements welcomed; simplification of materials and amendment
to notional kerb line may need to be considered; materials to be designed for




use of heavy delivery vehicles; needs to accommodate Queen street
remaining open to bus movements; cycle parking to be reviewed. Building 4.
Amendment to access from Castle Street being considered; disappointing no
improvement to Pennyfarthing Place in application. Castle Street:
Improvements welcomed, but could have welcomed extension of York stone;
crossing north of Object building caters well for movement between \Westgate
and Castle Street. Building 3. Inclusion of cycle hub welcomed. Norfolk
Street. Further discussion on location of bus shelters required; need to reduce
street bollards at southern end; welcome use of York stone at entrance to
South Square. Greyfriars Place. Defined turning head for taxis welcomed,
making space predominantly one for pedestrians; concrete paving
disappointing. Old Greyfriar's Street. Raised table at Greyfriars Lane entry
could be wider. South Square. Need to avoid visual clutter. Thames Street.
Need for bus shelter needs to be considered. Building 1. Disappointing no
entrance to south - west corner at pedestrian crossing point, which should be
added. Norfolk Street South. Proliferation of bollards should be reduced.
Castle Mill Stream. Not clear if bollards are proposed to restrict vehicle
access. Paradise Square. Shared surface to be flush with no kerb. Abbey
Place. Loading bay only to be available between 6.00 pm and 10.00 am.
Public Transport. Real time information scheme to be presented as a single
system for approval. Drainage. Conditions to outline permission deal with
detailed flooding issues. Travel Plan. Travel plans required for employees and
shoppers; Travel Plan with outline permission will need to be revisited.
County Council, Economy & Skills. Employment & Skills Plan developed; no
additional comments.

County Council, Education. Does not raise any issues relevant to school
organisation.

County Council, Property. No objection subject to conditions; mitigation to
effects on library included; works to Castle Street risk privacy issues for
County Hall; condition required to maintain privacy.

County Council, Infrastructure. Suggest CIL priorities should be contributions
towards education provision, Park & Ride, bus passenger facilities including
bus shelters and real time information, traffic management, city wide parking
management, public realm enhancements, Oxpens cycle / pedestrian bridge,
freight consolidation network.

English Heritage. Massing & Long Distance Views: Outline permission
breaches Carfax indicative height restriction, but eventual design near lower
end of parameter plan range; little overall variation. Views Within City: Not
conspicuous in long views; colours of roof to be varied and non reflective;
current scheme would entrench general indicative height plus 2m; interest
scarcely superior to what it replaces. Urbanism and Architectural Treatment:
Castle Street would remain forbidding and connectivity to castle less secure;
block 2 overborne by cinema; block 3 attempting good variety of motif and
surface treatment but appears as eccentric wall paper; best element is block
4 curved wall facade and lantern to northern end and external treatment of
department store. Scale in Context: View of block 3 from Turn Again Lane




significantly more overbearing than now and represents a failure. Upper
Facades: Could have been bolder approach to modeling at upper levels;
design of lantern disappointing; material hardly found at this level and if lit
would look incongruous; simplicity of lantern out of place. Recommend:
further discussion on animating corner of block 3 to Turn Again Lane and
consideration to omitting the lantern

Third Parties.

e Cyclox. Welcome cycle hub; wish to see supply of safe, dry and secure cycle
parking for staff and shoppers; pleased at number of cycle parking locations
and hope 2000 spaces can be provided; pleased Turn Again lane will have 24
hour access with cycling restriction only 10.00 am to 6.00 pm and would like
to participate in review; will crossings be Toucan facilities and sequenced?

In addition the Oxford Design Review Panel (ODRP) has been engaged and
provided comments on the reserved matters application as it has evolved. Its last
involvement was on 12" June 2014 when it received and commented on a
presentation by the Westgate Oxford Alliance at a stage when the emerging
designs were substantially as now submitted in the current application. The main
points of the ODRP comments were as follows: General Comments: Concerned
that bulk and horizontality overpowering and would benefit from further vertical
articulation; public space and landscape design could progress to match quality
of buildings. Skyline: South Square roof impacts on 3 Oxford landmarks and this
element may be reconsidered; taller and lower elements could be introduced,;
buildings could be broken up more; welcome rearrangement of plant to block 2
but more dramatic intervention in height may be beneficial. Public Realm: Public
realm and landscaping commendable, but more work required to allow
pedestrians to dominate streetscape; street surfaces over complex; signing and
lighting needs to be resolve. Bonn Square: Would benefit from simplification in
surface treatments; library entrance to be emphasised; proposed “screen”
represents solid piece of architecture; support windows to tower; tower crucial to
townscape composition. Old Greyfriars Place: Potential to become pleasant
public space; too much space given to cycle parking; tree is key feature. Internal
Spaces: 24 hour access commendable; Middle Square a successful space with
simple elegant roof; less convinced about roof to South Square; steps to Old
Greyfriars Lane should be avoided; suggest rethinking of best place for trees.
Thames St. & Abbey Place: Further improvement to road layout and landscaping
required; extra wide crossings suggested; car park entrance successfully
resolved; question if trees to Thames Street in correct location.

A copy of its written comments and the applicant’s response are reproduced in
full as Appendices 3 and 4 to this report. Officers have been fully involved in the
dialogue leading to these amendments and support them accordingly.

NB: Any further comments received will be reported separately to committee.



Officers Assessment:

Planning Policy

1.

The March 2014 report to committee reproduced elsewhere on this agenda
outlined in detail at paragraphs 10 to 20 the planning policy context in which
the Westgate development was being brought forward. That policy context
remains essentially unchanged, though since the submission of the outline
planning application various new policy documents have emerged which have
a bearing on this reserved matters application in the wider context. The first of
these is the adoption of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) arrangements
during the period when the outline planning application was under
consideration. By the time it was approved, CIL arrangements were in place
and the contribution of up to £4,336,506.33 was identified at that outline
stage. Complimentary to that was the adoption of the Affordable Housing and
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and Oxpens
SPD. Also adopted but not directly relevant to the case is the Jericho
Canalside SPD. Lastly at a national level the Planning Practice Guidance
document has been issued.

All these documents have been taken into consideration in determining the
current case, in addition to those listed in the report on the outline planning
application. None of the new documentation is such as to undermine the
general presumption in favour of the development as indicated in adopted
Oxford Local Plan, Core Strategy, West End Area Action Plan and draft
Station Area Masterplan.

Background to Reserved Matters Application.

3. Submission of the outline planning application required various procedural

matters to be satisfied before determination of the planning application could
take place, including reference to the Secretary of State as a technical
"departure” from the Development Plan. In the event the Secretary of State
did not intervene and “call in” the application for his own determination, but
rather the application remained within the control of the City Council as local
planning authority to determine and proceeded in due course to the grant of
outline planning permission, together with the completion and signing of
accompanying S.106 agreement under the planning legislation, and S.278
agreement. The permission fixed the means of access to the development,
together with a series of Parameter Plans, Development Principles and Public
Realm Development Principles. The main elements of the permission were
described as:

e demolition of the southern part of the Westgate Centre, pagoda at the

front of the Centre, multi-storey car park, existing fourteen residential

units, and potentially the front part of Central Library facing on to Bonn

10



4.

Square;

¢ infill of subway underneath Castle Street;

e extension of the existing Westgate Centre for use within Use Classes
A1 and A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5, D2 and C3;

e new management centre offices;

e retention of the existing public library;

e upto 81,922 sq. m additional retail floorspace (Use Class A1);

e upto 26,712 sq. m of A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 uses (27,017
sg. m including retained floorspace);

e up to 5,986 sq. m leisure uses (Use Class D2) provided at first and
second floor levels;

¢ refurbishment including new entrance and recladding treatment of
existing Westgate Centre fagades;

e residential accommodation providing up to 8,500 sq m (between 27
and 122 residential units) adjacent to Castle Mill Stream (Block 1a) and/or
in the eastern part of Block 3 and/or south east part of Block 4;

e provision of public toilets;

e creation of two storey basement car park, between 900 and 1,100 car
parking spaces, service area and associated access ramps;

¢ rationalised and refurbished service yard off Old Greyfriars Street to
serve refurbished Westgate Centre;

e provision of shopmobility facility;

e cycle parking;

e creation of two new public squares/spaces alongside new areas of
public open space;

e improvements to public realm including pedestrian access to Castle
Mill Stream; and

e Bonn Square entrance to the Westgate Development.

In the event the actual amount of Class A1 (Retail) floorspace now proposed
is 80,167sq m; Class A2 /A3 / A4 | A5 (Office, Restaurants, Bars or
Takeaways) floorspace 14,319 sq m; and Class D1 (Assembly or Leisure)
floorspace 5,031 sq m. The amount of public car parking spaces is set at
1,002 spaces.

This current application represents the remaining reserved matters details still
to be approved, consisting of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping. In
this context officers consider the principle determining issues to the reserved
matters application to be:

built forms: layout, scale and appearance;

public realm;

landscaping; and

heritage management.

11



6. The outline planning application was accompanied by a full Environmental
Statement (ES), to which addendum documents dated August and
September 2014, are submitted with this reserved matters application. In the
text which follows reference is made to the Addendum and also to the
sustainability and energy efficiency requirements of the development as they
are starting to emerge.

Built Forms: Layout, Scale and Appearance.

7. General Arrangement. The essential form of the development follows closely
that described at paragraphs 21 to 32 of the March 2014 report, and
established by approved Parameter Plans, Development Principles and
Public Realm Development Principles, that is to say a series of blocks of
accommodation linked by pedestrian arcades, squares and lanes re
establishing lost cross routes through this part of the city, and served by high
quality bus services, public car parking and cycle parking.

8. Atits northern end the bulk of the existing Westgate Shopping Centre,
(referred to as Building 4), is retained, refurbished and extended. At its
southern end Building 4 gives way to a new central split level space, Middle
Square, where the north - south route is met by an east - west route
connecting Turn Again Lane with Norfolk Street, broadly along the line of the
existing northern section of Old Greyfriar's Street. At this point the fall in
natural ground levels allows the ground level from Building 4 to become a
gallery level to Building 3 whilst stairs and escalators lead down to a lower
ground level matching natural ground level to the south. Retail shops are
located fronting the so-called South Arcade at this point, but also directly onto
Norfolk Street.

9. In turn Building 3 gives way at its southern end to a large pedestrian space
referred to as South Square. Routes lead into South Square from Old
Greyfriars Street, Norfolk Street and the extended Speedwell Street to the
south. To the west of the square and framing it is the department store at
what is Building 1, and beyond that, on the west side of Abbey Place the
residential block of accommodation at Building1A. Building 2 forms the
southern flank of South Square whilst underground car parking on two levels
is located principally below Buildings 1, 1A and 2, accessed from the south -
west corner of the site via a new junction from Thames Street. A new below
ground service bay is accessed from the south - east corner of the
development near the current junction of Old Greyfriars Street and Speedwell
Street whilst within the development a series of pedestrian bridges link upper
levels cross the arcades and squares.

10. Key focal points along Castle and Norfolk Streets are provided in a tower or

‘lantern” feature and “Object Building” to the north - west and south - west
corners of Building 4 respectively and by the department store at its southern

12



11.

end. The public arcades, squares and lanes are all naturally ventilated, with
glazed roofs over spaces to provide natural light. The retained Building 4
would possess extended hours of public access from 12 to 18 hours each
day, with all other public spaces within the development open 24 hours each
day. External grade materials are intended to be used throughout to
emphasise that the character of the spaces should appear as external streets
rather than as internal malls. The exception to this is the reworking of the
existing Westgate (Building 4), which is intended to have the character of a
contemporary shopping arcade. The development remains retail led but with
a significant mix of other uses. Some 59 x 1 and 2 bed flats are provided
within Building 1A and roof level restaurants added to Buildings 1, 2 and 3.
The upper level of Building 3 facing onto Norfolk Street would possess a multi
screen cinema, whilst Building 4 would continue to possess the Westgate
public library as well as leisure uses at lower ground and upper floor levels,
together with public toilets.

In order to articulate the massing and introduce elements of modulation, the
development is divided up into 5 individual but linked building blocks, each
designed by different architects within a set of overarching design principles
so that there is variety and interest, but also a sense of continuity and
integration. By the use of design tools such as creating set backs at roof
levels where lightweight structures are added, and by introducing horizontal
and vertical breaks to the facades an appearance is created of a series of
smaller ‘building blocks’ in response to the characteristic grain of the city. In
terms of materials, the application site lies between areas of the city centre
where different types of materials co exist. In the main, to the east and north -
east are to be found the majority of stone collegiate buildings whilst to the
south and west buildings are predominantly of brick. Between these areas are
to be found buildings faced with render or more contemporary materials. For
such a significant development within the city centre, it is important that the
choice of materials is not only of high quality but sympathetic to this Oxford
context, to reinforce local distinctiveness. A hierarchy of materials for the
various buildings is therefore adopted, made up of natural rough stone with
dressed stone to window openings, columns and parapets proposed for the
entrance screen wall and lantern from Bonn Square; high quality brickwork
with stone dressings, string courses etc. for primary buildings such as the
Object Building and department store; and secondary masonry consisting
mainly of split stone, brickwork and precast stone elsewhere. The detailed
selection of materials is controlled by condition for final approval.

12. At roof level the colours and tones are designed to be muted, with variation in

tones (shades of grey and brown) to emphasise the separateness of the
building blocks and to take account of long distance views where the
individual detail of buildings will be less distinct.

13



13. The proposals also envisage the rerouting of the current bus priority route
such that it would then run south of blocks 2 and 1 along an extended
Speedwell Street before turning north around the department store at Block 1
and north again along Norfolk and Castle Streets to New Road. This route
would be closed to other traffic, (other than a short northern section of Castle
Street where access to existing premises is required), and intended to be
pedestrian orientated. Bus stops would be located either side of Norfolk and
Castle Streets and to the northern, eastbound, side of Speedwell Street, with
raised carriageways at corners and junctions to facilitate ease of pedestrian
movement. The closure of Queen Street to bus movements does not form
part of the planning application however as it falls outside the ability of the
applicant to deliver and depends upon future decisions to be made by the
Highway Authority. Whilst there may an aspiration to close Queen Street to
bus movements, provision is also made within the proposals for the
development to operate with Queen Street remaining open to bus movements
should that be required. A taxi rank is located to Old Greyfriars Street, which
would be closed to through traffic and restricted to use for taxis and for
delivery vehicles accessing the existing service bay to Building 1.

14. From north to south the various built elements are referred to in the planning
application as Buildings 4, 3, 2, 1, and 1A, Buildings 4 and 3 being linked by
Middle Square, and Buildings 1, 2 and 3 enclosing South Square.

15. Building 4. Unlike elsewhere in the development, the bulk of the fabric of the
existing Westgate Shopping Centre is retained as Building 1 with those
structures south of a line drawn between the Pennyfarthing Place and Castle
Street entrances demolished and replaced. At ground floor entrance level
from Bonn Square the existing retail arcade would be retained but entirely
reworked, naturally lit from roof level and naturally ventilated. A barrel-vaulted
roof would be created, with existing shop fronts stripped away and replaced.
Granite paving in a diamond pattern envisaged. The retail units would
possess floorspace extending to lower ground and upper floor levels with the
public library retained, and health and fithess centre and public toilets also
included at second floor level. At lower ground level the existing service bay is
amended but retained and an informal food court introduced to the lower level
of Middle Square where it meets the east to west pedestrian extension of
Turn Again Lane. Further leisure uses are also proposed at this level, in the
form of a restaurant with bowling alley accessed directly off Castle Street.

16. Where the rear demolitions have taken place extensions to the retained
building are to be constructed, maintaining the existing east - west route from
Pennyfarthing Place to Castle Street, but with stairs and lifts provided to the
latter entrance, retaining the important pedestrian link to the Castle Quarter.
The semi circular form of the “Object Building” to Castle Street serves as a
marker to identify entrance points from this direction and emphasise the

14



further east - west pedestrian route created linking Turn Again Lane to Norfolk
Street just south of Paradise Street, and on to the Castle Quarter.

17. Architecturally the most striking features of this building are the new screen
“‘wall” and tower or “lantern” proposed for the Bonn Square frontage. The
screen wall is intended to be an elegant, full height architectural feature
constructed of rough and dressed stone, gently curved, and responding to the
change in direction from Queen Street to New Road. Its full height fagcade is
punctuated by large openings giving entrance to the arcade and providing
large window display areas. At its western corner the wall terminates at a
lantern whose position acknowledges its location in longer views from several
directions, giving emphasis to the townscape character at this point in the city
and signaling the presence of the development in longer views. Although the
proposal is for the glazed lantern to glow at night with subdued lighting, its
precise form is not fixed in these proposals but rather it is intended that its
details be subject to further dialogue with its final form being approved in
response to a condition imposed on the reserved matters permission if
granted. The intention is that the architect or this building would work with an
artist in developing the detailed design.

18. To Castle Street the uncompromising and inactive western elevation is
softened and interest added by the creation of 3 large cantilevered double
height bay windows to upper levels of the public library, and active frontage
introduced at the Bonn Square corner through ground floor display windows,
additional picture windows to the library, and in the entrance to the lower
ground floor restaurant with bowling alley. Elsewhere to the facades, existing
elements are painted in less sombre colours and tones than currently exist.
Also created at ground floor level is a stone granite base incorporating
benches following the natural slope of the land with a new horizontal canopy
located to the bottom of the existing cantilevered structures. Display cabinets
are also proposed to the ground floor as a mechanism to animate the
elevation.

19.Middle Square is located at the crossroads where Building 4 meets Building 3
in the north - south axis, and where Turn Again Lane is extended westwards
to Castle Street, creating a new pedestrian route also open to cyclists outside
the busier parts of the day. It also marks the point at which ground levels fall
away to allow a lower ground level of accommodation to be created. The
square itself would be covered, but not the east - west route, which would be
paved with natural sandstone at the lower level and flame finished granite at
the upper level, to be sympathetic to the treatment of South Arcade and
Middle Square itself. As a natural focal point in the development the space is
conceived as a busy, vibrant area and natural meeting place.

20.Building 3. Linking the two new spaces at Middle Square and South Square,
Building 3 consists of a north - south aligned structure with 24 hour access at

15



ground floor level and 18 hour to upper levels, conceived as an extension to
the existing network of city streets and lanes but under a simple glazed roof to
give protection from inclement weather. The lower ground level leads at grade
from the lower section of Middle Square where it crosses the east - west
extended Turn Again Lane directly to South Square. At this point ground level
from Building 4 becomes an upper ground level for Building 3 through
galleries running either side of the arcade with bridge links across. Lower
ground and upper levels of the building consists of shop units facing the
arcade or directly onto Norfolk Street. At first floor level facing Norfolk Street
however is a 4 screen cinema, whilst set within lightweight roof structures
(pods) to the eastern side of the building are a series of restaurants faced in
timber taking advantage of fine views across the historic city centre to the
east. External seating is provided to the restaurants, but set back from the
parapet edge of the building to prevent direct overlooking of residential
properties to the eastern side of Old Greyfriars Street. At ground floor level at
the junction of the east - west Turn Again Lane and Old Greyfriars Street is
proposed a cycle “hub” consisting of cycle shop, secure cycle parking and
associated café. Other cafes also face onto Turn Again Lane at this point.

21.In its materials the external facades of Building 3 are proposed to consist of a
masonry plinth faced with buff coloured brickwork synonymous with what is to
be found in much of this part of Oxford city centre, with precast reconstituted
stone detailing and framed openings for shop units. Architectural detailing and
interest is introduced at defined locations, for example in the terracotta fins to
the upper floor western elevation to Norfolk Street and in the metal rail
screening of plant etc. at roof level above. Moreover, at the Old Greyfriars
Street / Turn Again Lane corner above the cycle hub a series of cantilevered
corbels and steps to the elevation assist the building in turning the corner,
introducing visual interest and character to the space when viewed from the
existing Turn Again Lane and north along Old Greyfriars Street. Internally the
upper ground level shop units are set within metal faced pilasters with vertical
timber batons at upper levels and flamed granite used as the flooring
material, with a central linear feature introduced a subtle reference to
thoroughfares such as Brasenose Lane.

22.Building 2. Located to the south side of South Square and north of the
realigned bus priority route along an extended Speedwell Street, Building 2 is
broadly rectilinear in form and consists of a 4 storey structure above ground
with retail units on 3 levels and further restaurants at roof level. Taking
advantage of south facing views to the hills beyond Oxford, these restaurants
are again set within recessed lightweight structures and linked to those in
block 3 by a bridge link above South Square where a small public space is
also created. The southern side of the building together with that of the
department store at Building1 to the west represents the southern edge of the
commercial city centre before it gives way to residential accommodation
south of Thames Street.

16



23.The massing of the building is broken down rather more than other buildings
within the development into a number of smaller scale elements in response
to the domestic characteristics of the housing to the south side of Thames
Street. This is achieved by partially stepping out the fagade line into a series
of bays; introducing architectural features such as vertically recessed slots
containing reconstituted stone louvres; including a protruding plinth to the foot
of the fagade to provide informal bench seating; varying the parapet height;
and including a series of articulated openings at upper levels which also
introduce elements of active frontage. These windows also provide an
opportunity for additional window displays to the retail units they serve.
Moreover a further device to add visual interest to the facades and
complement the architectural approach is achieved by subtle changes to the
choice of brick, sourced from a single multi stock, but with white, buff and
grey colour variations. In combination these features produce variety but
within a limited contextual palette.

24.To the western side of the building where a new lane along the original line of
Norfolk Street leads to South Square lift access from the basement car park
and to upper levels are incorporated. Escalators also emerge direct from the
car park to South Square near the corner with the lane.

25.South Square. A covered but naturally ventilated space with galleries around
its perimeter and entrances from South Arcade, Old Greyfriar's Street, Norfolk
Street and the extended Speedwell Street, South Square forms a large new
public space measuring 20m by 68m at the lower ground level. An area
measuring 20m by 10m is envisaged to be kept fee at all times to allow
performances and managed events to take place. Again natural stone paving
is used, of granite with sandstone edging with seating provided. The gently
curved roof is formed of prefabricated arched beams, but does not extend as
far as the department store, in order to preserve that building’s individuality
and identity, and avoid creating a fully enclosed environment. External grade
materials are utilised in the form of a reconstituted stone colonnade with
brickwork for pilasters to the retail units.

26.Building1. The new building here represents the most self - contained of the
new commercial buildings as it accommodates the department store only,
intended for occupation by the John Lewis Partnership. The building is
rectangular in plan form, with retail floorspace on 3 levels plus a further
rooftop restaurant. Its main entrances are from South Square at both ground
and first floor levels. A further entrance is also indicated to the south side of
the building fronting onto the extended Speedwell Street, acknowledging that
a proportion of customers will be approaching from this direction, and
increasingly so in future years as the Oxpens area gets built out and further
developments take place at and around the railway station. A staff entrance is
also provided to the north - east corner, plus direct access to the underground

17



car park where 10 short-term customer collect bays are located. The store is
serviced via its own dedicated service bay at second basement level. A
centrally located rooflight provides natural light to the centre of each of the
upper two trading floors over the escalators located at these points.

27.As a freestanding single department store, the building inevitably possesses
large areas of retail floorspace but a smaller proportion of glazed elements
than might otherwise be the case. Its 3 main floors are horizontally defined by
reconstituted stone string courses. Within each string course the brickwork is
arranged in a serrated or “pleated” pattern to form vertical elements,
interspersed with large picture windows at various levels and at key locations
around the building. Where windows are located the vertical brickwork
elements are drawn tighter together to give the illusion of a curtain or vertical
blind being drawn from in front of the window. Two “tower features” containing
stairs and lift overruns are located to the south - west and north - east corners
to the building, bookending the building and signifying key views along
Thames Street and along Norfolk street looking south.

28.Building 1A. The outline planning permission granted consent for residential
accommodation within the range of 27 to 122 units, with two sites identified,
at upper levels to block 3 fronting Old Greyfriars Street and / or within Building
1A to the western end of the site. In the event the Old Greyfriar's Street option
was not considered appropriate due to constraints relating to the single
aspect eastern orientation of the units in particular, but also in the difficulty in
reconciling the use with the requirements of retailing units within the same
block of accommodation. In these proposals therefore, some 59 x 1 and 2
bed flats are proposed on 5 levels within Block 1A, taking advantage of the
westerly aspect of the building overlooking the Castle Mill Stream and the City
of Oxford College beyond.

29. Of the 59 units 35 are proposed as 1-bed units and 24 as two beds, with 5
flats at ground floor level, 14 on each of the first, second and third floors, and
12 at fourth floor level. The ground floor flats would possess internal floor
levels raised above natural ground level to provide protection from potential
flooding, (referred to later in this report), but also to provide privacy from
pedestrians using the Castle Mill Stream footpath. Also at ground floor level
facing east to the extended Abbey Place is an entrance foyer, access to stairs
and lift, cycle and bin storage area etc. The flats would not possess car
parking, other than 3 spaces set aside nearby at Paradise Street for disabled
residents. Two cycle spaces per unit are provided within an internal store at
ground floor level and at a further covered external store.

30. The West End AAP envisages that across the West End as a whole not more
than 65% of the residential units within the plan area should be flats and that
at least 35% should be 3, 4 and 5 bed houses. It also suggests that across
the plan area 50% of the flats should be 2-bed units. The plan is not

18



31.

prescriptive as to their location however. Moreover in any specific
development the Balance of Dwellings SPD indicates that not more than 55%
of units at city centre sites should be in the form of 1 and 2 bed units, the
remainder being larger units. This mix of unit sizes has to take into account
the nature, constraints and opportunities which any particular site provides
however. Officers are satisfied in this case that as it is not reasonably or
appropriately possible to provide larger units with gardens suitable for family
occupation, then the mix of 1 and 2 bed units can be accepted. All flats are
provided with their own private terrace or balcony area however.

In form the building is cranked (like a chevron) to follow the alignment of the
Castle Mill Stream to its west. In elevation the building consists of 3 elements:
a ground floor base inset behind the expressed structure to the building; a
central zone on 3 levels consisting of vertically aligned red brickwork
alongside balconies expressed externally to the facade where the building
faces west, and recessed where it faces east. At the fourth floor level the flats
are set back in a more lightweight structure faced in zinc to articulate the roof
level. All the flats at this top level have recessed balconies, with the exception
of 2 x 2 flats units at the northern and southern ends of the building which
enjoy a large roof terrace.

32.Basement Car Parking and Servicing. To the southern end of the application

site a two level basement structure is created accommodating public car
parking and a service area for the new retail units within blocks 1, 2 and 3.
The service bay is located at the second basement level as a double height
space with 10 service bays provided and service lifts to upper levels.
Entrance to the service area is via a gated access to the south - east corner
of the development from an extended Speedwell Street and to the public car
park from a new junction to the south - west corner of the development from
Thames Street.

33.Some 1,002 car parking spaces are provided on two levels, including 50 for

disabled use, 19 for parent and child use and 10 as short-term customer
collect spaces (including a further disabled space) for the department store.
5% of the car parking spaces would be fitted with electric charging points,
with the ability to install “non rapid” charging points for up to another 20
further spaces if there is sufficient demand in the future. Also located within
the public car park is a “welcome hall” providing a waiting area and lobby with
ticketing machines and shopmobility facility. Three passenger lifts provide
access up to the lane south of South Square as well as upper levels of
Building 2, with 2 escalators providing direct access to South Square itself.
Access direct to the department store is also provided for customer collect
arrangements.

34. Access to the car park from Thames Street is achieved via ramped entry to

accommodate up to 15 vehicles queuing off the highway if required. The entry

19



ramp is lit by recessed vertical lighting and on entry variable message signing
will indicate the number and location of empty spaces to avoid vehicles
having to tour the car park during busy periods. Individual lights above each
bay will also indicate if the space is free. The car park is intended to be open
24 hours each day; to be staffed during daytime hours; and to be fitted with
CCTV equipment throughout. Finishes to the car park will make use of light
and reflective colours for walls, floor surfaces etc. to provide a calm visual
environment, and will meet “Park Mark” standards.

Public Realm.

35.The quality of the public realm to the application site as it now exists is
generally poor, compromised by the road layout, existing Westgate Centre,
multi storey car park and surface car parks. The historical development of this
part of Oxford and the opportunities this latest set of proposals provide to
improve the quality of the public realm of the surrounding streets and the
quasi public realm within the development are set out in the officer’'s report for
the outline planning application.

36.In these development proposals there are many demands on the use of the
spaces between and around the proposed buildings - a route for buses,
delivery vehicles and cyclists, space for cycle parking, the need for street
lighting, tree planting, bus shelters, benches, bollards, art installations,
sighage and way finding. These requirements can place competing demands
on the use of space and the detailed design needs to balance these so that
for its users it is a pleasant environment, one in which they feel safe and
secure and where the experience and sense of place will be a positive one.

37.In this context for example the principal pedestrian entrance to the
development at Bonn Square is envisaged to be extended by the infilling of
the ramps to the Castle Street subway, and clearing away street clutter and
kiosks to form a new civic space paved with natural sandstone and granite
used as a contrasting edging strip. Cycle parking would be rationalised and
positioned so as to not obstruct access. (It is noted however that the enlarged
space created may still be required as a through route for buses passing
through Queen Street until such time as decisions made by the Highway
Authority confirm the new bus priority route envisaged. In either option access
would still be required for servicing the many retail premises in Queen Street
without rear servicing facilities). Other key public spaces are proposed at
Paradise Street, Castle Street, the north east corner of Building 1, Castle Mill
Stream riverside walk and extended Turn Again Lane, whilst funding from CIL
contributions may be available for improvements to Paradise Square
Gardens, Pennyfarthing Place or St. Ebbe’s Street which fall outwith the
planning application site.

20



38. The juxtaposition of new buildings creates points of interest at nodal points
and defines spaces. In turn the public realm needs to provide an appropriate
setting. The detail of this is still in evolution involving input from a wide range
of stakeholders and users. The key principle is that of a series of spaces,
focusing on access and crossing points with a hierarchy of streets and lanes
established. Within the spaces and the streets and lanes that connect them
there is a limited palette of materials proposed: natural stone setts and paving
with concrete derivatives also used, plus resin bound gravel and coloured or
aggregate dressed tarmacadam. In those areas where the footfall and
movement may be less the attention to materials and street furniture is all the
more important perhaps, to encourage use and to mitigate the impact of less
active frontages. In addition street lighting should be of high quality and
wherever possible attached to existing buildings rather than column mounted
to avoid clutter and to be consistent with current practice for much of the city
centre.

39. At the crossing/access points flush kerbs are proposed, to create ‘shared’
surfaces and lighter coloured materials to emphasise a sense of place.
Elsewhere where the street narrows this is given emphasis with the
positioning of the street furniture and tree planting.

40.As indicated above it is proposed that the detail of the public realm works
should be subject of a condition of any consent of the reserved matters
application. Such a condition will need to ensure that the needs of all users,
the requirements of those with a statutory responsibility for lighting and road
safety and public transport and the needs of the businesses on site are
properly considered and any competing priorities satisfactorily resolved. Itis
important that the public realm must deliver on these requirements, but also
that it is a pleasant place to be. Thus a challenge for Castle Street, for
example, is how to integrate the necessary requirements for bus shelters and
traffic information, without it appearing simply as a traffic hub.

41.Within the development additional new ‘public’ areas are proposed, as
described earlier. The palette of materials is proposed to be similar to those in
the surrounding streets so that they are experienced as a part of the streets
and lanes of Oxford rather than as part of an internal shopping mall. Both
Middle Square and South Square will have a roof over, to extend the flexibility
of use and for shoppers comfort. However, they are intended to be read as
covers rather than enclosures and the views out to the surrounding streets
will ensure a greater degree of visual connectivity than otherwise might be the
case. Access points to the upper levels are also served off theses spaces to
ensure that they are animated by movement and footfall.

42.0n a specific point of detail, concern has been raised as to whether the

curved roof over South Square could give rise to solar glare or dazzle in
sunlight when viewed from particular locations. An accompanying technical

21



report to the planning application by Hoare Lea Lighting adopting best
practice guidance concluded that there is no possibility of solar dazzle being
experienced unless the observer were at a location considerable higher than
the roof. It also examines any impacts from Carfax Tower and St. George’s
Tower under conditions at the equinox, and at the summer and winter
solstice. These locations were chosen as the viewpoints are above the height
of the roof and north of it. It was concluded that any of these conditions there
would be no solar dazzle at the locations tested. Rather that the roof would be
seen against the backdrop of a southern hemisphere sky where the most
dominant brightness source would be the sun itself.

Landscaping.

43.The proposed development will involve clearance of all the existing landscape
trees within application site, exceptions being to the belt of semi-natural
riparian trees straddling Castle Mill Stream to mitigate ecological implications,
and wild cherry at the western end of Turn Again Lane. The most significant
landscape impacts are the loss of the group of mature plane trees along
Castle Street that soften the facade of new County Hall which are lost in order
to facilitate the new road and bus lay-by layout, and the young Tree of
Heaven at the entrance to Westgate from Bonn Square.

44.The proposed tree removals account for approximately 50 out of 80 individual
trees and tree groups. This level of tree removal, as a proportion of the site’s
total existing tree stock (62%), represents a substantial arboricultural impact.
However, the majority of these trees were planted as part of landscape
design for the original Westgate development in the 1970s. The landscaping
of the time responded to the need to mitigate negative impacts of the
expansive surface level car parking. The tree, shrub bed and grass verge
plantings were designed within this context and their landscape value now
relates principally to their contribution to the setting of the existing Westgate
site. Redevelopment of the site requires a fresh landscape strategy that
responds to current circumstances. This principle has been established by the
granting of outline planning permission, and indeed previously by the grant of
an earlier permission for the extension of Westgate granted under reference
06/01221/FUL and renewed as 10/00454/EXT.

45.In the proposed landscaping scheme the principles set out seek to re
establish the urban grain and permeability of the site, and to extend the
quality of the city centre streetscape to Westgate. The landscape strategy has
sought to meet this particular objective through identification of replacement
tree planting locations at strategic sites to enhance visual articulation of
building masses, signpost different areas, and extend the character of the
historic city centre to the Westgate.

22



46. The public realm strategy identifies various locations for particular attention as
significant new public spaces with landscape features. These are principally
the waterfront by Castle Mill Stream connecting with the pedestrian routes
from Paradise Street; the junction of Old Greyfriars Street and Turn Again
Lane; at key points along Castle Street, for example at the raised platform
across Castle Street linking Westgate to the Castle Quarter; along the
southern side of Abbey Place; and in the boulevard style tree planting along
Thames Street. Each of these has the potential to create attractive gathering
places, focal points, and vistas. Within the historic city individual marker trees
are located at key locations. The landscape strategy for Westgate seeks to
adopt the same approach.

47.The landscape strategy also relies upon existing trees outside of the
development site to frame the site and lend landscape maturity, such as
along the eastern side of Old Greyfriars Street, Paradise Square off Norfolk
Street, and in the grounds of the City of Oxford College to the west of the
Castle Mill Stream. Overall the landscaping strategy forming part of this
reserved matters application is supportable though officers would wish to
review the precise choice of tree and shrub planting, and a condition is
suggested accordingly.

Heritage Management.

48. The officer’s report on the outline planning application considers in some
detail the anticipated impacts of the development on the views of Oxford and
on the setting of the listed buildings in the city centre and conservation area.
As made clear in that report there are no listed buildings directly affected. The
issues revolve around settings. Paragraphs 59 to 91 of that report address
heritage impacts with paragraph 91 concluding that there will be an impact on
the views of Oxford (the view cones) but that there are opportunities to
mitigate or eliminate any harm through the architectural treatment of the
buildings and the use of materials, with any residual harmful impacts being
justified by the significant public benefits that the development would deliver.

49.Given the importance of this aspect of the assessment of the proposals
reiteration of the discussion on the policy and legal context is necessary.
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
requires local planning authorities to have special regard to the desirability of
preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. A similar duty is imposed
in section 72 in relation to conservation areas. In the Court of Appeal,
Barnwell Manor Wind Energy v East Northants District Council, English
Heritage and National Trust, 18" February 2014, Sullivan LJ made clear that
to discharge this responsibility means that decision makers must give
considerable importance and weight to the desirability of preserving the
setting of listed buildings, (and conservation areas), when carrying out the

23



balancing exercise of judging harm against other planning considerations.
The Secretary of State has recently confirmed however that considerable
weight is not synonymous with overriding importance and weight.

50. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) explains:

When considering the impact of a proposed development on the
significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset,
the greater the weight should be. Significance can be harmed or
lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or
development within its setting. As heritage assets are
irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require clear and convincing
Justification. (emphasis added).

51.This justification is measured in terms of public benefit, the greater the harm,
the greater the public benefit needed to outweigh that harm.

52. The historic environment policies of the NPPF are supported by an English
Heritage Practice Guide, which gives more detailed advice about certain
aspects of change. Paragraph 6 of the EH Practice Guide states:

l.

Ii.

people care about and want to conserve those elements of the
historic environment that hold heritage value for them. Once they
are lost, they cannot be replaced. People also want the historic
environment to be a living and integral part of the their local scene
that requires proactive and intelligent management of heritage
assets

53. The recently published Planning Practice Guide (March 2014) seeks to
provide further advice on assessing the impact of proposals explaining that
what matters in assessing the level of harm (if any) is the degree of impact on
the significance of the asset. It states:

In general terms substantial harm is a high test. In determining
whether works to a listed building (or its setting) (or any other
designated heritage asset and its setting) constitute substantial
harm, an important consideration would be whether the adverse
impact seriously affects a key element of its special architectural or
historic interest. It is the degree of harm to the asset’s significance,
rather than the scale of development that is to be assessed.

54.English Heritage explains the setting of heritage assets as follows:

Setting is the surroundings in which an asset is experienced.
Setting is not a heritage asset, nor a heritage designation. Its
importance lies in what it contributes to the significance of a
heritage asset. Elements of a setting may make a positive or
negative contribution to the significance of an asset, may affect the

24



ability to appreciate that significance, or may be neutral. (The
Setting of Heritage Assets, 2011, paragraph 2.4, page 7).

55.1t comments further at page 6 that:
Some views may contribute more to understanding the heritage
significance than others. This may be because the relationships
between the asset and other historic assets or places or natural
features are particularly relevant.

56. The Planning Practice Guide published in March 2014 adds that a clear
understanding of the significance of a heritage asset and its setting is
necessary to develop proposals which avoid or minimize harm, and at
paragraph 13 also discusses the issue of setting:

Setting is the surroundings in which an asset is experienced, and
may therefore be more extensive than its curtilage. All heritage
assets have a setting, irrespective of the form in which they survive
and whether they are designated or not. The extent and importance
of setting is often expressed by reference to visual considerations.
Although views of or from an asset will play an important part, the
way in which we experience an asset in its setting is also influenced
by other environmental factors such as noise, dust and vibration
from other land uses in the vicinity, and by our understanding of the
historic relationship between places.

57.1n addition to the heritage assessment provided with the outline application,
this reserved matters submission is therefore supported by a view analysis
report that examines the visual impacts from the surrounding streets, viewing
points within the city and from the protected views outside the city. In total 27
short and long distance views have been considered:

Location Officers’ Comments
Within the City
1. | Castle Mound The view will be down onto the rooftop of Block 4 and

its plant area, which is proposed to be screened.
Around the tree on the mound the other blocks will be
visible and the articulation of the roof elements and
colour variation has been an important consideration
to give some interest to the view. The height is within
the agreed parameters and still allows views to the
green hills beyond. The development will not harm
understanding of this with the ability to look over the
development to the green hills beyond preserved.
The experience of the view will change with the
proposed development occupying the middle ground
in the view. The height of the proposed development
will screen views of the existing C20th suburb of St
Ebbe's, but this will not be harmful to the significance

25




of the view. The proposed development also
replaces views of the existing car park and surface
car parks. This will not result in harm. The nature of
the development reveals itself, albeit the view filtered
by the tree on the mound. Its massing would be
mitigated by the detailed design and proposed use of
materials, which is important but it will be a prominent
element within the view south east. Whilst there is
some variation in roofline and modelling (which is not
proposed to be built out to the maximum in the
parameters plans) there is an overall consistency to
the roof height, which is different from the variation
seen in the historic core. The treatment of the
roofscape, which is the most prominent element, will
be critical, and in particular the treatment of the roof
plant on Block 4. It was recognised at the outline
stage that the scale of the development would have
an impact on this view. A changed landscape of this
part of the town is a reflection of the growth of the city
and a reflection of modern retailing patterns and
needs, which, as has been recognised by officers,
presents particular challenges of integration. Extra
height to modulate the massing of the buildings
further would help, but result in further building forms
in excess of the policy height limits, which would
present its own challenges. On balance officers are
of the view that harm to the roofscape views of the
city (which would be less than substantial) is justified
by heritage benefits in the improvement in townscape
qualities and by other public benefits (identified in the
original officers’ report). However, a condition is
suggested to allow a review of roof plant screening.

St George’s Tower

From a slightly higher position than the mound and
without any trees to filter views the full extent of the
Westgate development will be open to view,
extending the city scale further south than currently.
The buildings will conceal the existing views of the
20th century suburbs, but retain views beyond to the
hills. The glazed roof over South Square will be
visible. The curved form of the object building reads
well with the apsidal forms of the castle buildings and
provides a sense of continuity. The texture and warm
tones of the brickwork on Blocks 3 and 1 also help to
provide a sense of continuity in the use of materials
in the area. The comments above also apply to this
view where the development, from the higher viewing

26




point of the tower will mean that it (particularly the
roof area) is more clearly in the view.

New Road

The new curved screen wall will be visible, acting as
an enclosure to the street and Bonn Square drawing
the eye along Queen Street and providing a sense of
arrival, enhancing the existing poor quality of County
Hall corner and an enhancement on the existing
situation. The glass lantern will be prominent in
longer views, marking the entrance to Queen Street
and the retail quarter of the city. Subject to detailed
consideration (controlled by condition) the lantern will
be a positive element to the roofscape.

Bulwarks Lane

A glimpsed view down Castle Street, which will
benefit from the proposed remodelling

Bonn Square

The curved screen wall and large-scale entrance will
provide a more fitting enclosure to Bonn Square, and
together with the proposed public realm works would
assist the square to meet the main entrance to Block
4. The ‘open’ texture and uncluttered elevation
provides an appropriate backdrop to the setting of the
listed Tirah Memorial.

St Ebbe’s Street

The view up the street onto the east fagade of Block
4 will change little. Although outside the application
site, there may be some rationalization of street
furniture and additional cycle parking funded from the
development via CIL.

Pembroke Street

The view is a long narrow channeled view, which will
change little (changes at existing parapet level to
Block 4)

Carfax

The curved screen to the fagade of Block 4 will be
visible at the end of the view where Queen Street
curves to meet Bonn Square. The double height
scale of the entrance and shop windows differs from
that of the adjacent buildings, announcing the
entrance to the shopping arcade. The finished roof
level will be similar to the existing and similar to the
scale of adjacent buildings. It will provide an
appropriate termination to the street, mitigating the
harmful impact of the existing new County Hall
building.

Turn Again Lane

The existing view is onto the side of the multi storey
car park and bridge access into the Westgate Centre.
The proposal opens up the view and access into the
new ‘cross street’ with the faceted corner of Block 3
designed to modulate the scale of the new building to
reflect architectural component scale of the buildings

27




in the foreground. The cycle hub and possible café
at street level will help to animate the space. Given
the existing conditions this proposal will be an
improvement to the character of the street and the
views as well as improving routes across the block.

10

Old Greyfriar’s
Street

Blocks 2 and 3 sit directly onto the street with brick
and stone facades, separated into bays and
punctuated by openings or blind arcades. The
buildings have consistent heights channeling views
up the street to a remodeled space at the top of the
street. In streets such as this where the footfall will be
less and where the proposed building predominantly
looks inwards the delivery of a successful public
realm becomes essential. Inward looking buildings
are not unfamiliar in Oxford and the character of
some of our existing streets derives from this
characteristic. Thus the nature of the proposal,
subject to the public realm details being agreed, will
not be harmful.

11

Norfolk Street

The view of the existing multi storey car park is
replaced by a series of taller buildings, which lead the
eye up to the object building and just in the view
County Hall. The nature of the viewing place will be
dramatically different as a key entrance into South
Square with the new department store to one side.
The existing nature of the street (leading up to Castle
Street) is poor. This will be an improvement.

12

Paradise Street

The existing view is towards the ramped access into
the back of Westgate. The height of the remodeled
block 4 will be lower than as existing and will include
shop window displays and an access. Progressing
up the street the object building and a principal
access point into the development will come into
view. The Castle Street fagade to Block 4 is part of
the retained building, but will be punctuated by new
openings to give it a greater degree of animation.
This is welcomed, as the existing state is poor. As
above the quality of the public realm in this section is
critical with the success of the street relying on how
the street is activated and experienced (by people,
street furniture and trees) as the building fagcade will
continue to be predominantly blank. As the overall
impact will be an improvement on the existing
situation this cannot be held to be harmful.

13

Thames Street

The view over the existing surface car parks will be
replaced by views of Block 1A, Block 1 and Block 2.

28




The difference will be pronounced, but give a sense
of enclosure and purpose to the street. The existing
views across the multi storey car park towards Tom
Tower will no longer be available. The experience of
this at present though is compromised by the
foreground views and traffic noise.

14

Preachers Lane

This will look onto the south elevation of Block 2,
where the roof ‘pods’ will also be in the view. The
variety in the architectural treatment and use of
materials suggests that the view will be an
improvement on the existing

15

Carfax Tower

The view, which is over the rooftops of Queen Street,
will include the plant screening on Block 4 and
beyond that the glazed roof over South Square. The
glazed lantern will be to the right of the view
protruding above the general height of the flat and
pitched roofs. In the middle ground is the large flat
roofed area of the Marks and Spencer store and the
roof glazing of Ramsay House. The significance of
the view will not be harmed. The lantern offers to
provide a point of interest in a view that currently
possesses few points of interest.

16 | St Michael’s, The glazed lantern to Block 4 will pop up above the
Cornmarket rooflines, but for the most part the proposed buildings
will be hidden form the view
17 | St Mary’s Church This view across the city centre will pick up some of

the roof elements of the new development, just
discernible behind the Town Hall, with the glazed
lantern seen a s a diminutive element behind Lincoln
College library

18

Jubilee Terrace

From this point there is a glimpse of the roofline of
Block 2 sitting below Nuffield College spire.

Outside the City

Views 19 — 24 are views of Oxford from the western
hills, where the proposed development will be visible.
The angle of the view varies slightly from looking
down n the development to looking across at it. In all
the views the consistency of the overall roof heights
is noticeable, in comparison to the varied heights in
the city centre. This will be mitigated to some degree
by the detailed design and proposed materials, but
the consistent scale will still be apparent. Adding
taller elements would help, but would extend further
the height above policy limits and would serve as
decorative elements with no obvious purpose. On
balance the less than substantial harm to the varied

29




roofscape, justified by the public benefits that would
flow from the development is the preferred
conclusion. In most views this analysis is only
possible with zoomed images. With the naked eye
the impacts are much less discernible. Rayleigh Park
and Hinksey heights are the closest views where the
impacts are more easily spotted.

19

Bridleway, South
Hinksey

A long distance view that looks down onto the city,
where the development will be in the view, on the
edge of the city centre, partly screened by the trees
along the Thames. The variety in the roof line and
the way the rooftop pods are articulated together with
the colours and tones of the proposed materials
helps the development to define the city edge,
without being overly prominent. The larger scale of
the buildings is apparent, for example the roof over
South Square is a long horizontal element, but like
Castle A Wing, which is also visible in the view, is a
reflection of the buildings’ function.

20

Hinksey Heights
Golf Course

This is not such an elevated view as 19 and less of
the buildings are visible (just the upper levels and
roofs). The impacts are similar to above. At this
angle of view the lantern on Block 4 breaks the
general roofscape and joins the other spires and
towers that punctuate the skyline in this part of the
city.

21

Bridleway, Chiswell
Farm

This is another elevated view, slightly oblique to the
two above and picks up the Object building in the
view. The glazed roofs over the south arcade and
south square are apparent in the view, and although
there is some variety in height of finished roof levels,
the view shows up the overall uniformity of the height
of the buildings. In this respect the glazed lantern to
Block 4 adds a point of interest.

22

Bridleway, Chilswell
House

This is similar to above, but slightly more elevated
and allows views towards the plant screening on
Block 4. The view appears to flatten the development
and the absence of vertical elements within the
context of the remainder of the city in the view is
apparent.

23

Boars Hill

In this view much of the external walling is not visible,
but the glazed roof to South Square and the roof
plant to Block 4 will be visible

24

Raleigh Park

This view picks up the Object building and the glazed
roof over South Square. The angle of the view is
such that the glazed roof sits in front of Tom Tower.

30




Depending on light conditions the roof, (because it is
glazed), may at times be more prominent than at
others. However, its skeletal structure and slim
curved profile give the roof some elegance and
marks the existence of the Square. Whilst the glazed
roof obscures a small part of the lower level of Tom
Tower (discernible with telephoto lens) it does not
detract from its prominence as a part of the historic
skyline.

25

South Park The roof plant screen to Block 4, the glazed roof to
South Square and Block 3 will be visible behind the
towers, domes and spires that rise above the
roofscape. The green backdrop beyond will remain.
The colour and tones of the roof elements will be
critical. Too bright or harsh colours will make the
structures unnecessarily prominent but as proposed
with muted tones the buildings will recede into the
background and will not harm the view.

26

Port Meadow, The glazed lantern to Block 4 will be just discernible
Godstow car park above the tree line to the left of Nuffield Spire,
otherwise the development will not be visible

27

Port Meadow The new development will not be visible in this view.
footpath

Environmental Assessment.

58.

59.

Accompanying the outline planning application was a full Environmental
Impact Assessment (EIA) dated September 2013 plus Addendum of January
2014, produced under the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 2011.
Paragraphs 214 to 217 of the officers’ March report to committee described
the need and purpose of the assessment in relation to the Westgate
development, whilst Appendix 15 to that report recounted the detailed findings
of the Environmental Statement, together with the key impacts, mitigation
measures proposed and a short officer summary. The Environmental
Statement (ES) also encompassed the two separate “enabling” planning
applications submitted for temporary car parking at Oxpens and temporary
coach parking at Redbridge Park and Ride, references 14/02558/FUL and
14/02563/FUL respectively.

The ES examined the impacts of the Westgate proposals under a series of
topic headings, namely: transport; air quality; noise and vibration; socio
economic; ecology; daylight, sunlight and overshadowing; wind; archaeology;
water resources and flood risk; ground conditions; demolition and waste
management; heritage and townscape; and cumulative effects. (Heritage and
townscape issues were considered separately in the officers’ report). Officers

31




commented at Appendix 15 to the March report on each of the ES topic
areas. Impacts were described in the ES as adverse, neutral or beneficial with
their significance depending on their magnitude and the sensitivity of the
receiving environment (or “receptor”).

60. In this reserved matters application the previous ES has been reviewed

61.

further and supplementary information supplied. In doing so the applicant has
noted that the policy context remains much the same though as indicated at
the head of this report, since the ES accompanying the outline application
was drawn up the Planning Policy Guidance document has been issued at
national level and locally CIL arrangements, Affordable Housing and Planning
Obligations SPD and Oxpens SPD formally adopted and a draft Station Area
Masterplan produced. All are relevant to the reserved matters application in
the wider context. Also adopted locally has been the Jericho Canalside SPD
though that has little direct bearing on the application. The supplementary ES
information of August and September 2014 also notes that major
developments have since been completed in the new University Mathematics
building at the Radcliffe Observatory Quarter (ROQ); in the student
accommodation at St. Clements car park; and at Pembroke College. Major
projects are also under construction at the former Ruskin College site for
Exeter College at Walton Street, at the Blavatnik site on the ROQ and at
Luther Court / Thames Street. These are all relevant considerations in respect
of cumulative impacts.

The ES information now supplied concludes that as the development follows
closely the Parameter Plans, Development Principles and Public Realm
Development Principles forming part of the outline permission, then there are
no new or different effects arising under the topic headings listed above. That
said there are 3 areas in particular where additional studies have been
undertaken, namely in relation to daylight, sunlight and overshadowing; wind
effects; and water resources and flood risk.

62.In terms of daylight, sunlight and overshadowing, the additional study relates

to the residential flats within block 1A to the western edge of the development
overlooking the Castle Mill Stream. Here the new accommodation was
assessed under 3 criteria: average daylight factor (ADF), no skyline (NSL)
and annual probable sunlight hours (APSH). On the ADF test, of the 148
habitable rooms tested, 17 did not meet the suggested ADF standard as all
but one are open plan spaces set behind inset balconies. The remaining room
is a bedroom to a ground floor flat. All the 16 others were above the
recommended lighting level for bedrooms however with 7 of them above the
recommended level for independent living room spaces. On the NSL test, 15
of the 148 rooms did not met the suggested level but all but 5 rooms enjoy
some daylight distribution to at least 60% of the working plane, which is
considered to be good for an urban area. Lastly on the APSH test 66 of the
108 rooms tested would enjoy a good level of sunlight throughout the year.

32



The reason for the lower levels of daylight to some rooms is that the spaces
involved are set behind inset balconies as open plan spaces. Conditions
could be improved by removing balconies but these are important features to
the residential flats and their absence would detract from the quality of the
residential accommodation. Overall, however the effects are considered to be
minor adverse and to produce good living conditions well up to the quality
expected to be enjoyed in an urban context.

63. With the detailed designs now in place in the reserved matters application the
wind effects of the development have been examined in more detail. Using
guidance set out in BRE Digest 520 the study examined conditions likely to
be experienced under different circumstances. For example conditions that
may be acceptable for a pedestrian standing or walking, may be
uncomfortable for sitting in the same environment. Four criteria were
therefore examined: “pedestrian walk through”; “pedestrian standing”,
“entrance doors”; and “sitting”. Any assessment is greatly influenced by
background wind conditions however and for the purposes of the study an
“averaged steady - state turbulence model” (RANS) was adopted. Under
these average conditions the 4 criteria for ground, second and upper ground
levels were examined across the whole site. Under the “pedestrian walk
through” criterion all areas examined were assessed as acceptable. Under
the “pedestrian standing” and “entrance doors” criteria all areas were
assessed as acceptable or tolerable, with the latter confined to areas along
Thames Street, the Castle Mill Stream footpath and small areas at roof level
where various restaurants are proposed to be located. It is only on the last
criteria of “sitting” are some areas described as unacceptable, i.e.
uncomfortable. These are relatively small areas where shoppers and others
are less likely to wish to linger for long periods in any event, especially when
underlying weather conditions are windy or gusty. The areas involved are
again to Thames Street; along part of the Castle Mill Stream footpath; at the
entrance to the car park; at the entrance to the new servicing bay; and a very
small area at roof level to the south - east corner of block 3. These conditions
are referred to variously in the language of Environmental Statements as
ranging from negligible in their effects to minor or moderate adverse. In
mitigation the ES suggests well-designed screening and solid balustrades at
key locations; planting; and possible minor adjustments to facades of
buildings. As a temporary measure on especially windy or gusty days
temporary wind screens could be utilised at roof level to the south - west
corner of Building 3. A condition requiring these details can be imposed
accordingly.

64.Lastly in relation to water resources and flood risk, the officers’ report on the
outline application had examined in detail the potential for flood risk to the
development at paragraphs 178 to 192, with particular reference to fluvial
flooding. Applying the 1 in 200 year flood level, (i.e. 1 in 100 year plus climate
change), a peak flood level of 57.11m AOD was estimated by the

33



Environment Agency (EA) at that time. As such a condition was imposed on
the outline permission that that no residential accommodation should be
located within areas affected by the 57.11m AOD flood level. In the event the
outline submission suggested that all residential accommodation would be
located at a minimum level of 57.70m AOD or 590mm above the 1 in 200
year level. In this worse case scenario mitigation would also be provided by
allowing floodwater displaced by the development to collect in the lower level
of the basement car park.

65. Since the March report however the EA has updated its modeling of the
Oxford Thames (Eynsham to Sandford) and lower Cherwell hydraulic model
such that the updated peak | in 200 year modeled flood level is now set at
56.70m AOD, or 400mm lower than previously modeled, placing the majority
of the application site within Flood Zone 1 and a very small area adjacent to
the western boundary in flood zones 2 and 3 where it would be at low risk of
flooding. Moreover the 1 in 1000 year flood level has also been confirmed by
the EA at 56.61m AOD. The updated modeling therefore finds the
development less at risk of flooding than previously, and that during both the
construction and operational phase the risk of fluvial flooding is negligible.
Nevertheless, on the precautionary principle, the basement flood mitigation
strategy previously proposed remains in place.

66. On other features of the water environment, during the construction phase
surface water flood risk is assessed as minor adverse, but can be mitigated
by measures to prevent contaminated run off. The impact of groundwater
levels is also assessed as negligible. During the operational phase of the
development, fluvial flood risk, groundwater flooding and surface water
drainage impacts are all assessed as negligible whilst in terms of foul water
and surface water infrastructure, the impacts are assessed as minor adverse,
but with the mitigation required by condition to the outline permission in place
this falls to negligible.

67.Overall officers are therefore satisfied that the reserved matters planning
application has responded positively to the requirements enshrined within the
outline submission and the ES which accompanied it, notwithstanding that all
the conditions imposed on the outline permission as they relate to
environmental concerns remain to be separately satisfied in full.

Sustainability and Energy Efficiency

68.In the outline planning submission the applicant identifies a series of 45
targets forming the basis for a sustainability strategy intended to be
implemented with the planning permission. A series of specific measures
were committed to accordingly at that stage. These were reproduced at
Appendix 14 and paragraph 209 respectively of the March 2014 report to

34



committee. A condition was therefore imposed on the outline planning
permission that:
“.....no commencement of development shall take place until a detailed
Energy Strategy including a Natural Resource Impact Assessment has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The strategy shall include (but not be confined to) the following elements:
e Code for Sustainable Homes level 4;
e BREEAM excellent status for block 1;
e A reduction of carbon emissions of at least 40% (per sq m) relative to
pre development conditions;
e Diversion of at least 90% of construction, demolition and excavation
waste from landfill:
e A minimum of 20% of energy needs generated on site from low or zero
carbon technologies, via a combined heat and power system and / or air
source heat pumps and / or other facility.
The approved details shall demonstrate how the Energy Strategy shall be
delivered across the development, with the details as approved
implemented and retained at all times following completion of the
development unless otherwise agreed in writing beforehand by the local
planning authority.”

69. A dialogue has subsequently commenced on these issues and
supplementary reports produced in support of the current reserved matters
application. These further reports are not intended to represent the formal
submission required by the above condition, but a position statement on
current thinking. Formal compliance with the condition will follow.
Nevertheless a series of specific measures are now identified, including those
to satisfy the requirements of a Natural Resource Impact Assessment (NRIA).
These can be summarised as follows:

Energy Efficiency:
e Solar shading where solar gain not beneficial.
¢ Central energy sharing “condenser loop” connected to air source heat
pumps for buildings 2 and 3 with ability to connect to Oxpens CHP system
if established.
¢ Insulation and build materials to comply and exceeded requirements of
Part L of the Building Regulations 2013.
e Air infiltration in excess of Part L.
¢ Double-glazing to residential properties plus shop units other than for
window displays.
o \Where provided boilers to be of condensing type.
e Low temperature hot water network to residential properties driven by
CHP system with ability to connect to Oxpens CHP system if established.
e Natural ventilation to residential flats with mechanical ventilation to
operate in “purge” mode to remove heat without opening windows during
periods of high ambient noise levels; mechanical ventilation to non -

35



residential units; public spaces to be naturally ventilated.

o Flats to achieve credits under Code for Sustainable Homes.

e Energy efficient lighting.

e A rated appliances provided to flats.

e Central Building Management system to record energy requirements of

retail tenants and alert if energy demand above normal levels.

e BREEAM Excellent rating for Building 1 and Very Good for Buildings
1A, 2, 3, and 4.

Renewable Energy.
e Heat pumps throughout development to exceed 20% target with
preferred standard of 30% or more.
¢ |If viable integrated organic PV photovoltaic modules in collaboration
with Oxford PV at roof level to generate zero carbon on site electricity.
If not viable 300 sq m of stand alone PV to be provided or funding for
equivalent elsewhere.

Materials.
e BRE Green Guide to Specification to be adopted.
e 5% of base materials sourced within radius of 100 miles.
e Materials with low percentage Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) to
be selected.
e All timber to be sourced from Forestry Stewardship Council (FSC)
certified.
e Construction, demolition an excavation waste to be retained and re
used wherever possible.
e Base build to include 25% recycled content.

Water Resources.
e Low flow fittings etc. throughout.
e Nature and drought tolerant soft landscaping to be included.

70. These features would produce an NRIA score of at least 8 out of a possible
score of 11, with the minimum requirement being achieved in all categories.
The potential may also exist to achieve a score of 9, in particular if the
innovative project underway with Oxford PV to fit next generation Organic
PVs is successful, or indeed if combined with a scheme of stand alone
conventional monocrystalline silicone PVs. These features may have the
potential to extend the on - site renewables to 30% or more of energy needs.
A condition of the outline planning permission also requires a reduction in
carbon emissions of at least 40% (per sq m) relative to pre development
conditions.

36



71.

Officers are satisfied that good progress has been made on these issues
towards a high energy efficient and sustainable development in compliance

with the requirements imposed on the outline permission.

Conclusions.

72.

73.

The principle of the development, the overall massing, layout, access
arrangements and general operation of the development is set out in the
Parameter Plans, Development Principles and Public Realm Development
Principles forming part of the outline permission. This reserved matters
application provides a level of detail not yet considered and is intended to
follow closely the requirements of the outline permission, and how the
potential impacts officers previously identified have been addressed.

Given the volume of information submitted it is not possible to consider each
and every matter or detail of the scheme within this report. Rather the matters
discussed are those that are key to the success of the development; where
there is an acknowledged interest either from the public, stakeholders,
consultees or elected members; and where officers consider discussion is
important. The conclusions may therefore be summarized as follows.

A development where Buildings 2, 3 and 4 are inward looking presents
particular challenges to the appearance and experience of the exterior
envelope, as identified in the officers’ report on the outline planning
application. The details that now form part of the reserved matters
application show how the elevations would be articulated to mitigate this
and within the constraints presented by the retailing needs and layout of
the shops, this has satisfied officers that the application can be supported.
There are parts - Paradise Street / Abbey Place and Old Greyfriar's Street
- which will have lower footfall and with low active frontages the public
realm will need to work harder to make these pleasant places to be. This
is not an uncommon characteristic of Oxford where colleges typically face
inwards. Success depends on attention to detail and high quality
materials, hence the proposed conditions above on construction details to
certain elements of the building design and final choice of materials.

The design of the buildings provides variety, (between each building and
within them), within a suite of overarching design principles that will deliver
high quality architectural forms, with individual elements that add interest
to the external and covered environments and create a character that,
(subject to the materials selected and workmanship), will enhance the built
environment of this part of Oxford.

There are many demands on the spaces between buildings from a range

of users and providers, with the risk that they could ultimately undermine
the quality and experience of the built forms. The applicants and officers

37



recognize that the delivery of a successful public realm is critical to the
success of the scheme and hence the recommended conditions to allow
the debate to continue and detailed designs to evolve further and mature.

A high priority is to ensure that the development will not result in harm to
the views of Oxford’s skyline and its townscape quality, and to ensure that
the opportunities to mitigate less than substantial harm or to justify it by
the public benefits the development will deliver must be secured. (See
paragraphs 37- 41 of the officers’ outline application report). It needs to be
made clear that the views of Oxford are not in themselves heritage assets.
They provide the opportunities to understand and enjoy the settings of the
listed buildings in the city, individually and as a group (i.e. the
conservation area). In this way, how the settings are experienced can
contribute to the significance of the heritage assets. It should also be
acknowledged out that whilst the development will be clearly visible in
some views, it would not be in others. Understanding the way the setting
of the heritage assets contribute to significance and how this significance
will be affected requires that the setting as a whole should be considered.
Thus while officers conclude that in some views there will be some harm,
this will be less than substantial on the setting of the city and its historic
skyline.

The reserved matters application shows how the roof structures are
articulated and modulated, by design and use of materials to address
these issues. The development will not block views of the spires, domes
and towers from the protected and other identified view cones. It will
however form part of the viewing experience. This has always been
recognised, and it has never been the objective to seek to conceal the
development. Indeed an objective is to recognise and celebrate this
development as a major expansion of the city centre, and in this respect
the visibility of the glass roof over the South Square, the glass lantern to
Block 4 and the Object building achieve this. The varied roofline and the
proposals (to date) for varying tones and textures of the materials also
assist in disaggregating the overall extent of the development into smaller
recognizable forms. However, in some views, from street levels and from
higher or longer distance views the overall consistency of the height of the
new buildings is apparent when seen against the smaller scale elements
around the site. This, it could be argued, is itself recognition of the
changing nature of retailing and a part of the history of the city, and
certainly one that is difficult to conceal within the high density and tight knit
network of streets and building blocks that form the historic core of Oxford.
The harm that this may result in is not considered to be substantial; has
been mitigated by design (but not eliminated); and is justified by the
significant public benefits in other terms which the development will deliver
(as set out in the outline application report).

38



74.1n summary then, the principles underlying these development proposals
have only emerged following a lengthy and positive dialogue between the
applicants, officers and a range of stakeholders and third parties, and are
translated in this reserved matters application into a detailed form, which can
be supported. Whilst the site provides many positive opportunities in
extending the Westgate Centre in line with established policy objectives there
are, too, constraints to be addressed. With further attention to details such as
in the final choice of materials for both buildings and public realm, and in the
disposition of street furniture and other facilities, officers have formed the view
that a high quality development and public realm can be achieved which can
also meet other objectives, for example in terms of access, retail offer,
employment opportunities and sustainability requirements.

75. Committee is recommended to support the proposals in accordance with the
recommendations at the head of this report.

Human Rights Act 1998

Officers have considered the Human Rights Act 1998 in reaching a
recommendation to grant reserved matters planning permission, subject to
conditions. Officers have considered the potential interference with the rights of
the owners/occupiers of surrounding properties under Article 8 and/or Article 1 of
the First Protocol of the Act and consider that it is proportionate.

Officers have also considered the interference with the human rights of the
applicant under Article 8 and/or Article 1 of the First Protocol caused by imposing
conditions. Officers consider that the conditions are necessary to protect the
rights and freedoms of others and to control the use of property in accordance
with the general interest. The interference is therefore justifiable and
proportionate.

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Officers have considered, with due regard, the likely effect of the proposal on the
need to reduce crime and disorder as part of the determination of this application,
in accordance with section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. In reaching a
recommendation to grant reserved matters planning permission, officers consider
that the proposal will not undermine crime prevention or the promotion of
community safety.

Background Papers: Applications 00/00770/NOZ, 06/01211/FUL,
10/00454/EXT, 13/02557/0OUT, 14/02402/RES.

Contact Officers: Murray Hancock / Nick Worlledge

Extensions: 2153/ 2147
Date: 17" November 2014

39



This page is intentionally left blank



st camn

e | PAINQY " RO

Uy LV
UETIW, s

ALLENDIX [




This page is intentionally left blank



RPPENDIX 2

[te13p
alow uj AFajexs uoneSuIw a1 ssnosip o3 Supsaw afpoT uosAuua], $10ZIsn8ny
uonejuasald susisap pajie3ap Ji YNWS malpuy $102 3sndny
SMILA 3[qelyLIdA SSNIsIp 03 Sunaaw [ 4O 102 3sn8ny
199115 SaUIRY [, 0] UONE[II Ul
sJajjeul [EJUSWUOIIAUS pue J1odsuer) ssnasIp 0 Sunasw YYaNEs $10Z3sn8ny y§

Huysriq

suBisap pajielep
paiepdn ayj jo suoissas ui-doa(q - NG ucyensua) edissm

02 {Aepuns pasop ‘ peT Aepanies
Suipnpuy) Anf 12 - wLT

suSsap pajielap

S19}jeW PaAIasal IS3Je] 3yl Yim ajisqam 10aloxd sy jo azepdn $T10Z AN wsT
aIms uonEI[NSU0) jeFS3M
3y Je uopIqIyxa sudisap parersp palepdn aiy jo s1adyyo L3 pue
SI0[15UN0d [1PUR0) AJUNOY 3IIYSPIoJXQ pue JJQ 10] mataaLd d[A +10Z AInf @91
uoniqryxa orqnd sufisap
paqeyap Burdisws ay1 Sunowoad ssuin, p1ojxQ 3yl ut Aep auo
PUE 1B}y PIOJX(Q 343 Ul paoe|d SJU3WASIIAADE OML, $10Z A wp1/wTT/w0T
uolssnasiq
pue uonejuasald udisaq pajreiaq sdnoid ssasay pue Aiiqesiq +10Z AIn[ wg
S1U3A3 UONIGIUXS PUE UO[IEYNSU0I 3y] Sloulold 0] Sassaulsnq
PUE SJU3PIsal ajeIpaulull 6] sJ3A) 00S'T JO uounquisiq 10z AIn( w8
$10Z
An[ w9T uo suj-doip a1 Jo maraard J[A € 01 PAIIAUL OS] aIom
$133130 433 pue sIo[[1Iunocy) AJUnoy) aNyspIojXp PUe IJ0 $10Z
isndny ur uorssiwqns oy to1ad sudisap pa[ieiap pajepdn ayl maia 03
suo[ssas ur-doap ay3 jo wiay) Sujuirojur SIO[[IDUNO3 [1JUNoY) A1UNo)
alysployxQ pue DJ0 pue sdnoid Auawe pue £unwuwod
Suipnur aseqelEp 3y) U0 SIAP[OY3EIS [[E 0} PaNSS] SIS 107 AN w8
swwesFoad uordIISUod
pue Suidesspue; ‘uoneSnrw uo Sunssw a8pory uosfuua], +10Z AN pig
a1epdp) dnouy Supaals pug 1S9M 102 3un{ ¢tz
(2avD)/1puno)
[oueq udisaq pLosxQ a1 03 suSisap pajre1ap sy JO UOHRIUISAL] $10Z aun|{ wzZT
Suyariq suSisap pa|reap
[Punay) AUno) aITYSPIoJXQ JO ANNIAXY JAIY) ‘SUOUILS BUURO( $10Z dunf g

NOITLINSNOD $8300HE NDISIA | LNGWILYLS SSI00V ANV NDISIQ QHOAXO0 ILYDLSIM

(VYGNES) uoneid0ssy s1uapisay 1uawdo[aa3g maN 53941 3§ +10Z £eW wST
SIUSWA[F UOWWO) pue
ey AqNd ‘b SUIp[Ing 10] SUSISp Pa[IEIap Y3 jo satdsaqry pue
dagd ‘svaydue Suip[ing ay3 £q 3ANI3XZ IO SYI 0 UOLEIUISII] +10Z ey wg
Buys1.q sudisap pa|re3ap xo[aA) $10Z AR w/
(7gvD)/1wuno)
[Bueq udisaq p10jxQ Y1 07 suSisap pajIeIap ayJ Jo UCHEIUASILY +10Z Aey wf
¢-1 sduiping 1oj sugisap pa[iE3ap ay3 jo 4qg
pue s312931yd1e SuIp[ing 3y3 Aq 2ANNI3XF DDO Y3 03 UONEIUISAL] $10Z AB puZ
Buyaiq sudisap pa|[eIsp 21005 ANAL) PICJXO $10Z ABW puZ
Buyaniq suBisap
pafreap (o) Juswadeuely adpo1 asipee) a8po uosAuua] $10Z AR 1T
Suneaw ajepdn 0afoud JN poomse(g B[0IIN $10Z 114V wgZ
Buyauq sudisap paj1e1ap (Ld0) ISM] UOHEAISSI] PIOJX0 $10Z 14V wgz

sugisap paeisp
FuiS1awa ay) Jo uonIqIYXY 1[N - AING uonelnsuo) s1ef1sap

+10Z M4y w0E - wSZ

sudisep s{re1sp

slapjewl paA1asal Juidiaura ay3 YIm 33isqam 1a(o1d 3y Jo ayepdn 102 11dy sz
anng uonejnsuo) AeRsam
atp1 18 uopIqIyxs sudisap pajrerap Sutiaws 3y Jo 5130150 £9Y pue
SJO[IUNGD [13UN0Y AJUND) 31IYSpIOJXQ Pue DD 10) matasad JIA $10Z 11dy 0¥z

uoniqyxa arpqnd sudisap
pa[re3ap SuiSsewa ay3 Sunowo.ad sawy, piojxQ oy ur Aep auo
Ppue [le]y pPIoJXQ 3y Ul pase[d SJuauwlasiIsApe Om],

$10Z 114y 51Z/w8T/wLl

S1U3A3 HONIQIYX3 PUE UOHE}[ASU0D 3Y] 310wo.d 0) S3SSaUIsN]
PUE SJUIPISaL 33E(PAUIW] 0] SIAAY 00S‘T JO UONNQLISIQ

$102 Ay wET/w]

102

[1dY wpz uo uoniqIyxa ayl jo maraaad J|A e 0] pajlaul os[e 31am
513310 £33 pue SI0[[IPUN0) AJUN0Y SIYSPIOJX0 PUE DD 'SIUIAD
uoljelnsuod ayj Jo way) SurwIojul SIO[[IIUNGS [PUNoy) AHUno)
alyspIoyx(Q pue J)0 pue sdnoid Auswe pue Aunuwiwod
Surpn)pul aseqeiep ayj U0 SISP[OY3INEIS [[B 0] PANSS] 51519

$10Z 1Udy wIT

Bunasui ajepdn afosd J|4 YITWUS MAIPUY

$107 [dy wg

O ROV TJJ &

43



This page is intentionally left blank



PPPEWVDIK S

Design Council, Angel Buiiding, 407 St John Street, London EC1V 4AB United Kingdom DESig 1]

Tel +44(0)20 7420 5200 Fax +44{0)20 7420 5300 COU ncil
info@designcouncil.org.uk www.designcouncil.org.uk @designcouncil

CONFIDENTIAL

24 June 2014

Oxford City Council: Westgate Centre

Dear Sara Fuge,

Thank you for presenting the scheme to the Oxford Design Review Panel on 12 June 2014. We are delighted to
have the opportunity to comment on this significant proposal again. The scheme has progressed considerably since
we last reviewed it, particularly in terms of the landscape design. We applaud the collaboration between the design
teams to address the areas where the different blocks and design approaches come together. However, we
continue to think that the overall bulk of the proposal and its horizontality are potentially overpowering and would
benefit from further vertical articulation to make it fit into Oxford's skyline. We also think that the public space and
landscape design could progress further to match the quality of the buildings and to provide a fully enjoyabie and
welcoming experience for pedestrians.

Impact on the Oxford skyline

This is a significant project for Oxford both in terms of providing a new retail experience and impacting on the
skyline. We are pleased to see various long distance views to assess the buildings. Whiie the buildings appear
inconspicuous in view VV20, view VV24 raises a number of concems. We feel the roof of South Square blocks the
view of three Oxford landmarks and suggest reconsidering this element. Its materiality, reflectivity and colour will
have an impact on its presence and prominence in the skyline. Oxford’s skyline has a rich mix of magnificent vertical
features and we encourage the client, design teams and local authority to continue exploring how the current
horizontality of the proposal could be interrupted and taller or lower elements introduced. Some of the proposed
buildings, for example the John Lewis block and the cinema, could be broken up at the top 1o inject variety. The
plant treatment across the scheme can also contribute to a varied roofscape. We welcome the changes to block 2
where the rearrangement of the roof plant creates a more interesting composition, but we still feel that a more
dramatic intervention in terms of height would be more beneficial. We think that the roof plants of block 3 do not
serve the purpose of breaking the skyline and therefore there is no value in drawing attention to them. The plants of
the John Lewis building are also visible and should also be considered in the long distance views. It will also be

45

{rglsturnel spanky adtizer 2700659



Design Council, Angel Building, 407 St John Street, London EC1V 4AB United Kingdom Desig'n

Tel +44(0)20 7420 5200 Fax +44{0)20 74205300 COU ncil
info@designcouncil.org.uk www.designcouncil.org.uk @designcouncil

CONFIDENTIAL

important to think about future technical progress and changes to avoid that the roofscape will be altered
haphazardly with infills and unplanned additions.

Public realm and landscape design

We find the development of the public space and landscape design commendable and look forward to seeing it
evolve further. We encourage the design team to continue exploring how pedestrians will experience the different
urban spaces, roads, squares and arcades. We think that more work is required to allow pedestrians dominate the
streetscape over buses and cars, for example in Castle Street and around the entrance into the car parking. Subtle
changes of materials and a refined palette will help define spaces and give pedestrians the confidence to use them.
Overall, the design of the street surfaces and the introduction of decorative elements, for example the bands of dark
stone which create gratuitous graphical thresholds, appear over-complex and we suggest a simpler approach which
can perhaps draw more from the geometry of the adjacent buildings. We find that the object building, for example, at
the junction of Norfolk Street and Castle Street could inform the design of the streetscape in a more meaningful
fashion. Signage and lighting across the whole scheme also needs to be resolved in a consistent and well-designed

manner.

Bonn Square
Bonn Square in particular will benefit from further simpiification in tenms of the treatment of the street surface. The

sweeping curve in the ground does not make the square more legible and distracts from the entrarice into the
arcade and library. We feel that the library entrance could be further emphasised and recommend looking at the
soffit and its detailing to design a space that matches the building’s significance. We are delighted to see the details
for the proposed screen; it is a solid piece of architecture and we urge the client to maintain this high quality through
to construction. We also commend the introduction of windows in the tower which give the library more presence
and provide an interesting vista along New Road. The tower is a convincing present-day reinterpretation of the
Oxford spires. Its simple, elegant geometry stands in the tradition of the Nuffield College Tower nearby. We feel that
the tower is crucial to the townscape compasition and an indispensabie element of the proposal and shouid be
delivered and constructed as designed.

Old Greyfriars Place

0ld Greyfriars Place has the potential to become a pleasant, intensively used public space framed by attractive
buildings. We admire the way the new elements and the existing buildings come together, particulary how the
tacetted fagade of block 3 relates to its context. Great care will be required to maintain the crispness and quality of
this elevation. We encourage the design teams and client to revisit the landscape element of Old Greyfriars Place.
Currently, too much space is given over to cycle parking and we suggest using more compelling cycle racks that
could contribute more fo the quality of the square. It could also be interesting to introduce climbing walls as a
creative way to provide activity in the square. The tree in the centre is a key feature of this space, both in terms of
the view along Tum Again Lane and being the focus point of Old Greyfriars Place, and we urge the design teams

46

Ampintera nanty sumner 272044



Design Council, Ange! Building, 407 St John Street, London EC1Y 4AB United Kingdom DESig n
Tel +44(0)20 7420 5200 Fax +44(0)20 7420 5300 COUHC”
info@designcouncil.org.uk www.designcouncil.org.uk @designcouncil

CONFIDENTIAL

and client to undertake an arboricultural survey to assess the tree’s life expectation and to establish whether a new
tree should be planted.

Internal squares

Offering 24 h public access across the whole scheme is commendable, and we applaud the improvement of the
junctions between the different blocks. Middle Square, for example, comes together now as a successful space,
covered by a simplé and elegant roof. We like the shop windows at the end of Greyfriars Lane and Norfolk Sireet
which act at a useful identifier and also refer back to the windows in the tower at Bonn Square. We are less
convinced by the resolution of the roof of South Square which impacts on the long distance views and does not fully
protect the space below from rain and wind. We think that the access to South Square from Old Greyfriars Street
requires further work. Every effort should be made to avoid the steps into Greyfriars Lane and to allow a smooth and
barrier free transition into the scheme. We suggest revisiting the bridges that connect block 2 and block 3. The
glazed nature of the upper bridge is questionable as it is part of a service route and likely to look cluttered if not
carefully managed. The slot drain along Norfolk Street is an appropriate solution for a mall, but we recommend
reassessing its position in the ground and its strong structuring impact; it will be important to think about how this
element will be temminated and continued into other parts of the scheme.

We enjoy the idea of trees and planting inside the buildings to add an element of greenery to the scheme. We
suggest rethinking how to best place the trees. Currently, the tree in Middie Square on the upper level feels
uncomfortable. A tree growing from the ground floor would perhaps be more appropriate and the vertical extent of
greenery could be achieved differently. We also recommend reassessing the distribution of trees in South Square to
establish a more useful relationship with the proposed seating. The rearrangement of King Cross Square in London,
for example, introduces large planters which alsc serve as seating. We encourage the design teams and client to
investigate whether the trees could grow from the car park under South Square to inject another level of drama and
excitement into the scheme.

Thames Street, Abbey Place

The proposal has the potential to fundamentally change the quality of Thames Street and we commend the way the
scheme addresses the neighbourhoods to the south, encouraging pedestrian access from this direction. To fully
achieve this and to safely navigate the different roads and the access into the car parking, we think further
improvements to the road layout and landscape design are required. We suggest infroducing extra wide pedestrian
crossings and to realign the crossing at the south-westem comer of the site. Currently it directs people to the comer
of the John Lewis building which could create an uncomfortable pinch point. The proposed car park entrance is
successfully resolved. The combination of the ramp with its grooves and lighting and block 1a towering above it
creates a dramatic and compelling piece of architecture. The sauthem elevation of this block could perhaps benefit
from introducing windows. The planting and landscape design around the perimeter of the site need another layer of
thought to achieve the rich detailing and complexity required for this scheme, particularly along Abbey Place, which
still appears road dominated. We question whether the trees along Thames Street are in the right location and

47



Design Council, Angel Building, 407 St John Street, London EC1V 4AB United Kingdom

Tel +44{0)2C 7420 520C Fax +44{0)20 7420 5300

info@dssigncouncil.org.uk www.designcouncil.org.uk @designcouncii

Design
Counicil

CONFIDENTIAL

suggest reassessing whether they fully serve as a screening device along the south elevation. It could be interesting
to explore altemative ways to resolve the streetscape and introduce shading. We also find that the column

announcing the Westgate Centre would benefit from further refinement to make it feel less hard.

Thank you for consutting us and please keep us informed of the progress of the scheme. If there is any point that
requires clarification, please telephone us.

Yours sincerely

cc (by email only)
Matthew Hele
Neil Read

Sarah Stevens
Duncan Mason
Peter Caleman
Adrian Price
Edward Fowler
Oiiver Smith
Glenn Howells
David Henderson
Reinhold Schmaderer
Simon Hudspith
Gareth Hunter
Bob Allies

Simon Fraser
Jeremy Dixon
Edward Jones
Michael Trigg
David Edwards

Westgate Oxford Alliance
Westgate Oxford Alliance
Turey

Turley

BDP

BDP

BDP

Gillespies

Glenn Howells Architects
Glenn Howells Architects
Glenn Howells Architects
Panter Hudspith Architects
Panter Hudspith Architects
Allies and Morrison

Alies and Morison

Dixon Jones

Dixon Jones

Dixon Jones

Oxford City Council

48



Design Council, Angel Building, 407 St John Street, London EC1V 4AB United Kingdom Design

Tel +44{0)20 7420 5200 Fax +44(0)20 7420 5300 C OUHC”
info@designcouncil.org.uk www.designcouncil.org.uk @designcouncil

CONFIDENTIAL

Michael Crofton-Briggs  Oxford City Council

Murray Hancock Oxford City Council

Lois Partridge Oxfordshire City Council
Taufiq Islam Oxfordshire City Council
David Brook English Heritage
Richard Pleat English Heritage

Review

process
Fallowing discussions with the design team and local authority and a previous pre-application review, the scheme was reviewed on 12 June 2014
by John Lyall (chair), Colin Haylock, Eddie Booth, Jessica Bryne-Dariel, Mark Swenarton and Richard Coleman. These comments supersede any

views we may have expressed previously.

Confidentiality
Since the scheme is not yet the subject of a planning application, the advice contained in this letter is offered in confidence, on condition that we are

kept informed of the progress of the project, including when it becomes the subject of a planning application. We may share confidential letters with
our affiliated panels only in cases where an affiiated panel is taking on a scheme that we have previously reviewed, We reserve the right to make
our views known should the views contained in this letter be made public in whole or in part (either accurately or inaccurately). If you do not require
our views to be kept corfidential, please wiite to designreview @designcouncil.org.uk.

Sl

49



This page is intentionally left blank



ALLPEN DIX A

Design development / responses to ODRP comments:

INTRODUCTION
1)

We have introduced further modelling of the plant screens and Middle Square roof to provide
greater variety to the skyline and reduce the horizontal profile. A greater variety of materials and
colour tones have also been considered to help break the mass of roof scape and reduce the
‘greyness’ of the roofscape.

We have revised the north west corner of the Norfolk Street elevation of Block 3 to introduce more
vertical elements

2)

The Alliance are currently developing the ‘next layer’ of enhancement to public realm to further
match quality of buildings and provide a fully enjoyable welcome experience for pedestrians — for
example through public art, wayfinding, lighting and ‘punctuation’ of key areas — this will be
explored further at Public Realm workshops going forward.

A fully revised set of public realm drawings has been submitted with the Reserved Matters
application.

We have reconsidered the design of the roof to Middle Square, reducing its bulk by lowering the
sections above the lanes, thereby relating the primary roof element to the Object Building. The
lowered lane roofs help break the horizontality of the proposed roof.

The South Elevation of Building 2 (to Thames St) has been remodelled with parapets being lowered
to increase vertical variation.

IMPACT ON OXFORD SKYLINE
3)

A study has been completed on the roof to asses solar ‘dazzle’ and examples provided of the glazing
proposed for the South Square roof, using a similar glass and colour, to address this point. The roof
to South Square has been carefully considered in relation to the verifiable views. See also item 13.

4)

The roof level of most blocks has been set within the maximum datum of the Parameter Plans. At
the outline planning stage most roof level parameter maximums were lowered. Consequently this
means increasing heights to achieve vertical articulation is not possible without breaking the Outline
Application Parameters.

5)

We have introduced variation into the materiality of the roof forms.

51



6)

The massing of the plant room enclosures to Building 2 has been broken to respond to this
comment.

7)

A study has been presented at a Reserved Matters workshop exploring options to add more ‘drama’
to the roof plan enclosures to Building 3. This drew attention to the roof features.

It was felt following the review at Reserved Matters workshop that the original proposal was more
successful and so the design reverted to the original proposal.

PUBLIC REALM AND LANDSCAPE DESIGN
8)

We have increased the quantum of natural stone, in particular around the Object Building. By
extending the proposed pavement material across to the other side of the carriageway to encourage
pedestrians to cross along key east west routes (for instance to the Castle Quarter).

(Please also see first paragraph, note 2.)
9)

The thick black kerb proposed for Bonn Square has been removed from the design based on the
panel’s comments

10)

A lighting strategy has now been developed — a document supporting the strategy has been
submitted with the Reserved Matters application.

We are in the process of developing the wayfinding strategy — with preliminary discussions with
officers on 7 November. This will be an ongoing process, building on the principles explained at this
meeting, and developing into proposals for approval once the designs are developed.

We will be submitting a separate RM application for wayfinding and signage.
GREYFRIARS PLACE
11)

The design of Greyfiars Place has been reconsidered following ODRP comments. Additional trees
have been added, and the quantum of cycle parking has been increased. In considering the
proximity to the National Cycle Route (St Ebbes) and public consultation on an East-West Cycle
route, it has been determined that this it the most appropriate place for a cycle hub and extensive
cycle parking.

The turning head has been adjusted and further public realm enhancements are currently being
considered. (See also note 2, paragraph 1).

52



12)

The tree to Greyfriars Place — WOA has met with the Tree Officer (Chris Leyland) to review the tree,
and it has been confirmed that the tree should be retained. This study identified that the tree will
have a life span of at least 40 years.

INTERNAL SQUARES
13)

Environmental tests have shown that the majority of South Square is protected from inclement
weather.

The roof has been carefully considered in relation to long distance views and its curved form has

minimal impact on these.
14)

We have designed out the steps on Greyfriars Lane as suggested by the ODRP comments. The lane
will now be ramped.

15)

The bridge over Greyfriars Lane is within a tenancy and so must be enclosed. It will be a managed
bridge and will have to remain clear in order to comply with fire regulations.

16)

A clear termination to the slot drain will be defined at the southern edge, where Norfolk Street
meets Speedwell Street and is shown on the public realm drawings. At the north end of the slot
drain a clear definition will be made through a change in surface material.

17)

A study has been completed to explore the addition of trees in South Square. Options were
developed and presented to OCC —upon review with OCC it was felt the mass of planters required to
allow for live specimens to grow was not successful and the planters and trees should be omitted
and other means considered to add interest and vertical quality to the space. Other ways of
including interest and vertical elements will be explored in the programme of Public Artwork.

It is not possible to incorporate planters in to the basement levels without significant impact on the
function and quantity of spaces in the car park, and on South Square itself.

We have removed the trees from the Upper level of Middle Square as recommended
THAMES ST, ABBEY PLACE
18)

The crossing is now shown as a flush surface avoiding a direct alignment with the key corner
identified.

53



19)
Windows have been added to the southern elevation of Building 1A as suggested.
20)

We have changed the proposed land use and extensively redesigned the ground floor of Building 1A
which will address this comment.

21)

We have reviewed the line of trees to Thames Street and we feel that these will balance and form a
successful relationship with the existing trees on the South Side of Thames Street.

22)

The design of the totem to the car park continues to be reviewed and will be developed further as
part of the evolution of the public realm and branding and wayfinding work which is now in
progress.

54



	Agenda
	3 Westgate Centre, OX1 1NX: 14/02402/RES
	Westgate Centre: 14/02402/RES Appendix 1
	Westgate Centre: 14/02402/RES Appendix 2
	Westgate Centre: 14/02402/RES Appendix 3
	Westgate Centre: 14/02402/RES Appendix 4


